ANNUAL REPORT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc.

Stand-alone, Thrift Banks, Rural Banks and Cooperative Banks

As of 2021 Annual Report

Reference
CONDITIONS PAGE SECTION
Compliance with Section 175 -  Public
Disclosures/Disclosure Requirements in the Annual
Report
Corporate Policy 1
a. | Brief discussion of bank’s vision and mission statements 1.a
b. | Introduction of the bank’s brand 37 1.b
C. | Business model of the bank 1.c
Financial Summary/Financial Highlights 8
Financial Condition and Results of Operation
a. | Review of bank’s operations and results of operations
for the financial year including details and explanations 3.a
for any significant change during the year
b. | Highlight of major activities during the year that impact 12-15 3b
operations )
c. | Major strategic initiatives of the bank and the banking 3c
group, as applicable )
d. | Challenges, opportunities, and responses during the 34
year )
Financial Results of Business Segments (for complex banks)
a. | Summary of financial performance of the business
segment
b. | Contribution of each major business segment to the n/a
total revenue of the bank
c. | Significant developments during the year including
major activities
d. | Future plans/targets/objective
Risk Management Framework Adopted 5
a. | Overall risk management culture and philosophy 5.a
b. | Risk appetite and strategy 5.b
c. | Bank-wide risk governance structure and risk
17-18 5.c
management process
d. | AML governance and culture, and description of the
overall Money Laundering (ML)/Terrorist Financing (TF) 5.d
risk management framework to prevent the use of the )
bank for ML/TF activities
Corporate Governance 6
a Overall corporate governance structure and practices 6.a
b. | Selection process for the Board and Senior Management 6.b
c. | Board’s overall responsibility 19-44 6.c
d. | Description of the role and contribution of the
executive, non-executive and independent directors, 6.d
and of the chairman of the Board




Reference

CONDITIONS PAGE SECTION
e. | Board composition. For each member, include the 6.c
following: )
i. | Type of directorship 6.e.i
ii. | The principal stockholder represented if nominee 6.e.ii
iii. | The number of years served as director 6.e.iii
iv. | Number of direct and indirect shares held 6.e.iv
Percentage of shares held to total outstanding
V. 6.e.v
shares of the bank
f. | Board qualification 6.f
g. | List of board-level committees including membership 6
and function 9
h. | Directors’ attendance at Board and committee meetings 6.h
i. | Changes in the Board of Directors (for complex banks) 6.i
j. | List of Executive Officers/Senior Management 6.]
k. | Performance Assessment Program 6.k
I. | Orientation and Education Program 6.l
m. | Retirement and Succession Policy 6.m
n. | Remuneration Policy 6.n
. Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive .
i . . 6.n.i
and Non-Executive Directors
ii. | Remuneration Policy for Senior Management 6.n.ii
0. | Policies and procedures on related party transactions 6.0
- — - 19-44
, Overarching policies and procedures for managing .
i. . 6.0.i
related party transactions
ii. | Conglomerate Structure 6.0.ii
ii. | Material RPTs 6.0.iii
p. | Self-Assessment Function 6.p
The structure of the internal audit and compliance
i. | functions including its role, mandate/authority, 6.p.i
and reporting process
The review process adopted by the Board to
ii. | ensure effectiveness and adequacy of the internal 6.p.ii
control system
g. | Dividend policy 6.9
r. | Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives 6.r
s. | Consumer Protection Practices 6.5
Role and responsibility of the Board and Senior
Management for the development of consumer
i. | protection strategy and establishment of an 6.S.i
effective oversight over the bank’s consumer
protection programs
.. | The consumer protection risk management system .
ii. 6.5.ii
of the bank
The consumer assistance management system of
.. | the bank which shall include the consumer
iii. . . 6.s.iii
assistance policies and procedures as well as the
corporate structure for handling complaints




CONDITIONS

Reference

PAGE

SECTION

Corporate Information

7

a.

Organizational structure, including the name and
position of key officers

b.

List of major stockholders of the bank, including
nationality, percentage of stockholdings and voting
status

C.

List and description of products and services offered

d.

Bank website

e.

List of banking units domestic and abroad including

45-48

7.a

7.b

7.C

7.d

7.e

Audited Financial Statements (AFS) with Auditor’s Opinion

49-132

8

II.

Compliance with Appendix 63c of the MORB-
Disclosures in the Annual Reports and Published

Statement of Condition

>

Capital structure and capital adequacy:

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Deductions from Tier 1 (50%) and Tier 2 (50%) capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital requirements for credit risk;

Capital requirements for market risk;

Capital requirements for operational risk; and

@ Nl o w AW N

Total and Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio on both solo and
consolidated bases.

ILA




RURAL BANK OF
CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
(RBCCI)

“An Bangko nga an Hingyap Pag-Asenso ug Trabaho.”

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

[1]




UR PURPOSE

COMPANY MISSION

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City,
Incorporated (RBCCI) is committed to
provide financial products and services
at reasonable rates and terms to promote
business opportunities to small and
medium enterprises, develop agricultural
livelihood projects, and to provide
technical support and assistance to

agricultural reform beneficiaries.
Towards this end, RBCCI shall provide

quality service that will meet and exceed
its clients’ expectations to ensure that

COMPANY VISION

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City,
Incorporated  (RBCCI),  exhibiting
integrity, competence and compassion,
aims to be the leading rural bank in the
Region and a catalyst for financial
growth in the countryside that uplifts the
quality of living of its people.
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COMPANY PROFILE

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Incorporated
(RBCCI) was founded on February 7, 1959 with the late
Hermenegildo R. Rosales at its helm as the Chairman of
the Board, came together with the intention of assisting
the agricultural and aquaculture sectors.

RBCCI maintained the distinction being the first bank in
the City of Calbayog as well as in the Province of Samar.
Incorporated with an authorized capital of Php
50,000.00, this “seed” money was more than sufficient
to assist the farmers, fishermen and other small
businesses. Its main thrust was to improve the quality of
the Samarenos’ lives by offering finance assistance and

LAl technical know-how regarding the business or project
they would like to embark on.

In addition to providing financial assistance to those who
required it, RBCCI also provides depository services to
its clientele.

Such facility not only provides security measure for the
bank, at the same time, it provides an investment
opportunity to its depositors through its earned interest
on their respective monies.

Owing its continued existence and success to the /
communities served by the bank, RBCCI in return takes

part in social responsibilities like giving contribution to
various disaster-relief programs, socio-civic activities
and charitable institutions.




CORE VALUES

Be worthy of trust and respect.

We are committed to show fairness, transparency, honesty and responsibility in
execution of our duties.

We deliver accurate, reliable and customer-friendly products and services.

Our business processes and practices support service excellence while protecting the
interests of our customers, employees and shareholders.

CUSTOMER-CENTERED.

. We are customer-focused.
We continuously improve the quality of our services and image of the bank and to
exceed the customers’ expectations and to provide with the highest value.

RECOGNIZING HIGH-LEVEL PERFORMANCE.

We recognize the creativity and diversity.

. We offer rewards to our high-level performer employees.
We are attentive, responsive, reliable and accessible when it comes to customers
financial needs.

BEING EFFECTIVE.

. We are innovative and designed leaders who seek to do the right things at the right time.

. We believe that in order to be effective, the Bank must be run efficiently with the highest
and superior standards in the industry.

. Mere compliance and continually challenge ourselves to improve, overcome barriers

and remain passionate in what we do.

DILIGENCE.

o We are dedicated to consistently deliver outstanding results.
INNOVATION.

o We ensure the optimal use of information communication technology.
TEAMWORK.

o We work together in harmony to realize the goals within the allotted time.
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In addition to providing financial assistance, the Bank also
provides depository services to its clientele. Such facility not
only provides security measures for the Bank, at the same
time, it provides an investment opportunity to its depositors
through its earned interest on their respective monies.

To continuously promote and facilitate orderly development
of rural economy and solve financing difficulty of rural areas
in development process, the RBCCI has planned to
participate in various government lending programs that will
mitigate the bank’s possible risks and improve the RBCCI’s
performance by actively participating as an avenue to make
successful  government  financing programs, while

simultaneously ensuring decent profits and maintaining the
fine balance between growth and quality.
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To achieve these objectives, the RBCCI intends to
evolve itself in government-initiated programs.
That provides loan programs and/or financial
initiatives to small farmers and fisher folk, micro
and small agri-fishers enterprises, micro
entrepreneurs, etc. to provide affordable and cost
effective capital requirements to enable them to
improve efficient productivity and profitability of
their respective income-generating activities.

RBCCT’s involvement in these projects will result
to shifting of its planned paradigm — from usual
high-volume lending programs to focusing on high-
yielding investment partnered with the governmen
programs.




RBCCI comprises of the one (1) main
office, two (2) branches and (2) branch-
lite offices, namely: Head Office; Sta.

Margarita Branch; Allen Branch; Money

B C CI Shop Branch-lite Office; and, Oquendo
Branch-lite Office.

The Bank offers variety of products and

BUSINESS services such as, but not limited to,

Savings Account, Credit Accommodation

— Real Estate and Chattel Mortgage,

M O D EL Agricultural Loan, Salary Loan, and

Business Loan, Bills Payment -

SAMELCO, ATM/POS Transactions.

The Bank generates its revenues through
different channels mainly in the aggressive
collection of loan receivables and, in selling of
acquired and foreclosed properties.

RBCCI aims to continuously develop and
construct a healthier and more diversified rural
financial system to effectively improve the
overall financial environment of the community.

VALUE OFFERS:

SAFE DEPOSIT
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Parent Bank (solo)

Minimum Required Data 2021 2020
Profitability

Total Net Interest Income 10,195,379.11 8,236,696.29
Total Non-Interest Income 487,901.87 2,386,810.52
Total Non-Interest Expenses 12,668,776.62 | 10,636,554.24
Pre-provision profit 1,886,618.44 13,047.43
Allowance for credit losses - -

Net income 1,280,978.55 586,677.98
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Liquid Assets 87,103,517.65 | 90,340,760.35
Gross Loans 91,762,147.42 | 79,599,485.46
Total Assets 178,513,925.37 | 155,393,858.45
Deposits 126,982,195.97 | 114,110,947.40
Total Equity 43,718,561.37 | 39,218,687.31
Selected Ratios

Return on equity 5.61% 2.57%
Return on assets 0.72% 0.38%

CET 2 capital ratio (for UBs/KBs) - -
Capital Adequacy Ratio 25.90% 22.91%
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TIER 1
Paid up common stock
Paid-up perpetual and non-cumulative preferred stock
Retained earnings
Undivided profits
Total Tier 1
Less: Total unsecured loans for both direct and indirect to DOSRI
Net Tier 1
TIER 2

Increment Reserves-Bank Premises
General loan loss provision
Total Tier 2
Total Qualifying Capital

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Credit Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk
Total Risk Weighted Assets

AKDOWN OF COMPONENTSOF TIER 1
AND TIER 2 CAPITAL

20,000,000.00
2,832,400.00
19,605,182.82
1,280,978.55
43,718,561.37
93,639.68
43,624,921.69

691,600.23
691,600.23
42,933,321.46

148,382,284.39

22,730,786.06
171,113,070.45

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio and Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

Net Tier 1

Total Risk Weighted Assets
CAR Tier 1

Net Tier 1 plus Tier 2

Total Risk Weighted Assets
Total CAR

(8]

43,624,921.69
171,113,070.45
25.49%

44,316,521.92
171,113,070.45
25.90%




ESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRMAN | h

Our historic First Virtual Annual Stockholders Meeting 12 months
. After 360+ days later, we are happy to report to you, our dear stockholders,
at indeed we are SLIDE 3 UP! But before | go into details, allow me to
quickly illustrate what your bank has gallantly faced over the last year. With
the economic disaster that was 2020, 2021 had to be just better. While to some
extent it was, the threat of ECQ or MECQ, which are now called Alert Levels,
often disrupted whatever small gains there were. We just couldn’t get a run
going, so to speak.

But, despite these overlying conditions, the TEAM RBCCI, led by |
President and CEO Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento, tirelessly endured, persisted, |
and pushed on to acquire and collect and make Rural Bank of Calbayog City,
Inc. the bank of choice of Calbayognons. The Income jumped by 23.64% from ’
last year to Php 14.590M while Expenses were tempered by an increase of
18.13% or Php 13.247M. This resulted to a Net Income of Php 1.280M, a very |
healthy spike of 118.34% from last year.

Several years ago, your Board of Directors made a careful, conscious,
and critical decision to gradually veer away from one of its famous products.
The usual practice of providing personal and salary loans, a primary contributor
to our bottom line in years past, gave way to put more emphasis and focus in
providing business loans that are backed by tangible security.

Oftentimes, these require a more tedious and stringent process of validation and our employees had to quickly learn to adapt
and be more vigilant in order to satisfy our customers. On hindsight, this strategic pivot proved to “insulate” the bank from the economic
effects of the pandemic which greatly affected individuals and small businesses alike and allowed us to quickly recover lost momentum.

In terms of Income contribution, Income from Other Loans is at 42% compared to 2019 levels of 24%. Meanwhile, Income
from Salary Loans, which were at 17% in 2019, is now only responsible for 3% of our Total Income. A clear turnaround.

For 2021, we set a lofty target of Php 104M for our Loan Portfolio. Despite the demanding conditions, your bank was able to
reach a Gross Loan Portfolio of Php 92M or 88% of its target. Most of these loans were personally worked on by our ever-determined
Bank President and CEO, Alan Sarmiento. Congratulations!!!

Quoting our President and CEO, and in complete synchronization with our hashtag of #NOWHERETOGOBUTUP, for year
2022, we are targeting over Php 110M in Total Loan Portfolio!!

At the start of 2021, we were facing the bulk of the after-effects of the pandemic as exhibited by Past Due ratios of as high as
45% or close to half of our entire loan portfolio! Efforts had to be doubled not just in collecting our customer’s debts but more
importantly, reaching out and communicating to them that we are here to extend to them our help. As 2021 closed, we were able tg
reduce this to a much manageable 25%.

As a result, and after an absence of 16 years, | am very happy and proud to announce a modest dividend of Ph2.00
for each stockholder on record as of December 31, 2021.

Again, CONGRATULATIONS TEAM RBCCI!!! Onwards and Upwards!!!

ALFRED DENNIS B. ANCHETA
Chairman of the Board
[9]



airman, directors, and stockholders,

Like 2020, the year 2021 was full of challenges. We are
still in the pandemic stage, still feeling the effects of the
economic slowdown attributable to the COVID19 Pandemic.
The management had to adjust the required protocols, like
handling customers and sanitation of the office environment.
As a proactive initiative, | personally made arrangements for
the vaccination of all bank employees using only Pfizer to
protect the employees from mild to severe cases of the
COVID virus.

Aside from the challenges brought about by the
pandemic, Management had yet another challenge - the
resignation of employees due to piracy, personal
advancement, and salaries. This is a major concern for
RBCCTI’s Board and Management due to the time, effort, and
investment to develop the skills being wasted and the
continuity of the work processes, affected. In these
challenging times.

In consideration of the challenges faced by Rural Bank
of Calbayog City, Inc., Management shall tediously assess
the bank’s financial status and performance from Yr. 2022
to Yr. 2025 to establish an effective and efficient business
plan and projections, to include the benefits and incentives
of the staff to encourage them to stay in the bank.

(10]
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021 Performance Review and Report on Operations

1 Income and Performance

In 2021 year-end income is Php 14,590, 515.99 with an expense of Php 13,309.539.44 resulting
to a net profit of Php 1,280,978.55. The increase in expenses of Php 1,126,000.00 was due to the
expenses for the 30 foreclosed properties resulting to an overall legal cost of Php 670,000.00 as well as
the stockholders’ dividend payment in the amount of Php 456,000.00. Without the two expenses, the
total expense should be at Php 12,183,000.00 as compared to the pre-pandemic period with resulted to
an income of Php 19,480,926.01 in 20109.

Loan Concentration

Management revised the RBCC Policies and Procedure Manual to reflect the current operational
requirements of the Bank. One notable revision made is the loan concentration or the breakdown of
loan exposure of the bank which now reflects an increasing in secured loans accommodation while
decreasing the approval of unsecured loans. Thus, the bank is further moving away from unsecured
loans to secured loans to reduce the risk on uncollected payments and the same time the cost of the
Allowance for Credit Losses for the unsecured loans. In secured loans, the foreclosure of properties
resolves the default payment of the borrower, while in unsecured loans, writing-off of the bad debt is
the only solution for the non-payment of the said loans.

The loan releases for Yr. 2021 reached 78% with Secured Loans amounting to Php

65,082,620.28 at 70% of the Bank’s Loan Portfolio. While the Unsecured Loans amounted to Php
27,509,248.02 or 30% of the Bank’s Loan Portfolio.

For a better appreciation on the status of Unsecured Loans, below is the breakdown:

BUSINESS LOAN Php 4,597,256.58

P3 LOAN 3,702,301.61
OTHER LOANS 796,832.71
ACPC LOAN 4,670,177.90
SALARY 13,742,679.22

The Unsecured Loans for ACPC amounting to Php 4,670,177.90 is zero risk to the Bank due
the funds are given by the DA-Agriculture credit policy council (ACPC) with payments due for ten
years.

For the Yr. 2021, the total loans released by RBCCI amounted to Php 45,960,000.00 with
Secured loan amounting to Php 35,910,000.00 or 78.13% of the loan releases. On the other hand,
Unsecured Loans accounted for 22% of the volume of loan releases which includes APCP Loan
amounting to Php 5.5M or 12%, Salary Loans from RBCCI to private employees amounting to Php
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1,680,000.00 or 4%, and lastly, loans from MSME which need financial loan assistance
amounted to Php 2,070,000.00. As established in the RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual, ceiling
for the loan concentration of secured loans is at 80%.

Loan Releases for the year 2021
No. of
Amount Accounts

SECURED 35,910,000.00 18 78%
UNSECURED 10,050,000.00 126 22%

Unsecured — OAL 550,000.00 6 1%

Unsecured — MSMEs 2,070,000.00 13 5%

Unsecured — OL 200,000.00 1 0%

ACPC Loan 5,550,000.00 84 12%

Salary Loan 1,680,000.00 22 4%
TOTAL: 45,960,000.00 144

The Board may adjust the loan concentration for Secured Loans to 90% and 10% for Unsecured Loans.
With regards to RBCCI’s performance for its Past Due and Non-performing Loans (NPL) showed
encouraging progress as compared to its performance in Yr. 2020. While in Yr. 2021, the Past Due and
NPL improved to 25% from 41% for Yr. 2020.

Management is still striving to reach 20% for the Past due and Non-performing Loan.

2020 2021
Current Ratio 59% 75%
Past Due Ratio 15% 1%
NPL Ratio 26% 24%

The Letter of Commitment as required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) started in Yr.
2016 due to the non-compliance of RBCCI to some regulatory requirements way back in Yr. 2012. The
BSP directives were not acted upon in Yr. 2012 which resulted to BSP’s recommendation in Yr. 2016
for the issuance of a Letter of Commitment from the Bank to comply with the directives for 5 years of,
which Management slowly complied with all the directives. As of this reporting, only 5 remainj
findings need to be addressed for BSP to fully accept RBCCI’s corrective actions. Management
to close all the findings and exit from BSP’s Letter of Commitment this Yr. 2022.

(12]



orecast

RBCCI is gearing to increase its Secured Loans from 80% to 85% to protect the bank from
high-risk unsecured loans to lesser risk of secured loans. For the twenty years, the Bank’s concentration
is on Salary Loans. However, the market for the said loan type is so saturated since all government
financing is focused to finance government salary loans. At present. RBCCI cannot compete with
government funding capacity. In addition to this, the Commission on Audit likewise disallowed private
financing to participate in the government salary loan program.

Secured loans are presently the best choice due the attached collaterals for now are land
collaterals. The land market and prices are on an upward swing with an appropriation of 5% to 15% per
annum depending on the area. The risk with non-payment is lesser not to mention that the ACL is to
recover from bad loans. Thus, the bank can surely recover from non-payment of loans. Land collateral
includes agricultural land to help the agri-business and farmers in developing the land.

For Yr. 2022, RBCCI is projecting a Total Income of Php 17,650,000.00 as compared to the
pre-pandemic period of Php 18,730,000.00. Core Income is projected to be Php 12,500,000.00 while
Non-core Income at Php 4,500,000.00. On the other hand, Direct Expense is targeted at Php
12,606,656.90 while Indirect Expense is targeted at Php 1,809,952.00 for a total of Php 14,416,608.90.

For Yr. 2022, Past Due and Non-performing Loan is targeted at 20%.

Loans

The projected Loan Portfolio for Yr. 2022 is Php 40M with Secured Loans at Php 34M or
90% of the projected loans, while Unsecured Loans will be at Php 6M or 10%, mostly for the ACPC
Loan Program. The Php 4M will be released by February 2022 and the remaining will be coming
from the business loans and qualified salary loans from the private sectors.

The main drivers for income are the core and non-core and for the expenses the direct and indirect
expenses. Quantitative Target
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When the new management started in Yr. 2016, the revenue reflected a Loss of Php7,000,000. Now,
although the Net Profit Ratio is from 3% to 8%. RBCCI is slowly adjusting to BSP’s compliance and

financial growth.

Targets

Income & Expenses
Total Expenses 16,416,608.90
*Direct Expenses 14,606,656.90 (88.97%)
*Indirect Expenses | 1,809,952.00 (11.03%)
Total Income 17,650,000.00
Core Income 13,150,000.00 (75%)

Non-Core Income

4,500,000.00 (25%)

Net Income 1,230,000.00
NEW Accounts
Number of Accounts 450
Amount 13.5 Million
LOAN Release
Total Loans
Amount 120 Million
SECURED
No. of Accounts 25
Amount 34 Million
UNSECURED
No. of Accounts 40 Excluding the
Amount 6 Million ACPC loans
Past Due Ratio of 20%




alary of Employees

To improve the workforce of the Bank, there is a dire need to increase the salaries of the
employees to the level of the industry. With limited resources for manpower, there is a need to attract
employees from other financial institutions to join the Bank. With the increasing inflation rate, the Bank
needs to increase the salary or allowances to 3% to 5% per annum to catch up with the inflation cost.
The other option is to provide additional employee benefits through performance bonuses and/or the
institution of a Pension Fund for employees who have served the Bank for at least five (5) years with a
progressive pension program as the employees’ tenure with the Bank increases. The Pension Plan shall
be thoroughly analyzed, reviewed, and eventually approved by the Board upon its completion.

Dormant Account and Close Account

The Bank generated 390 new accounts, yet only 90 new accounts availed of the loan facility
of the bank. Thus, it may be concluded that the new accounts opened were due to the trust and/or need
of depositors to use the bank’s facilities.

Closing of Accounts in Yr. 2021 totalled 910 closed accounts with 818 accounts closed due to
dormancy, only 92 accounts were voluntarily closed due to personal reason. It should be noted that the
dormancy problem was generally caused by a previous bank program for students with Tancinco
University.

In Closing

In closing, | am proud to inform you that after 18 years, the Bank will give a cash dividend to
the Stockholders Php 2.00 pesos per stock share or a total value of Four Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand
Six Hundred Forty-Eight pesos (P 456,648.00) as reported to the BSP dividend declaration dated
January 07, 2022. This is evidence to the commitment of RBCCI to serve the interest of the stockholders
and investors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank have continuously implemented various ways to manage, if not mitigate, the different
risks that are inherent to the Bank in view of maintaining financial soundness. The Bank’s risk
management culture and philosophy is formulated on the matter of assessing, measuring,
monitoring, and reporting risks to manage the exposure to quantifiable risks.

The Bank believes that, as there are opportunities, there are associated risks. The objective is not
to avoid risks totally, but to adequately and consistently evaluate, manage, control and monitor
the risks, and ensure that the Bank is duly compensated for all risks taken. Good risk management
involves making informed and rational decisions about the level of risks the institution wants to
take in the pursuit of its objectives, but with consideration to return commensurate with the risk-
taking activity.

RISK APPETITE & STRATEGY

The Bank’s risk appetite considers the various risk types and is operationalized via thresholds,
policies, processes and controls. Effective thresholds are essential in managing aggregate risks
within acceptable levels. Portfolio risk limits for the quantifiable risk types are cascaded and
other significant risk aspects are guided by qualitative expression of principles.

RISK GOVERNANCE

. The Board of Directors directs the conduct of our activities and provides sound leadership to the
President and CEO and Management. The Board of Directors has delegated authority to the
Committees to enable them to oversee specific responsibilities based on clearly defined terms of
reference. The Board of Directors lays down the general framework for the Bank’s risk
management by approving risk policies including maximum limits for exposure to the main types
of risk. The President and CEO is responsible for managing the risk profile of the bank within
the framework set by the Board of Directors and for ensuring that the RBCCI aggregate risk is
consistent with its financial resources and willingness to take risk.

BANK-WIDE RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors, which is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound risk
management system. The Board assumes oversight over the entire risk management process and
has the ultimate responsibility for all risks taken. It regularly reviews and approves the
institution’s tolerance for risks, as well as its business strategy and risk philosophy.
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oney Laundering and Terrorist Financing

e Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. places a high focus on preventing financial crimes because

they not only pose a serious risk to the bank’s reputation but also weaken the integrity of the bank. To

guarantee that its clients follow the law and do not use the Bank for unlawful operations, the

Compliance Officer oversees its rules and regulations, and is responsible for monitoring the customer

and counterparty transactions in compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering Law.

RBCCI AML Internal Policies

¢+ It shall be priority of RBCCI to practice and engaged business in an ethical standard to protect
the bank’s integrity not only to its employees, constituencies, and clients but to the entire

community.

72

¢ Establishing and recording of the client’s identity whether individual, partnership or corporate

must be the bank’s utmost concern in any banking transactions (Know Your Customer or KYC).

existing laws shall not be allowed nor kept by RBCCI.

+ Use of anonymous, fictitious names or coded accounts unless otherwise permitted under any

+« TIssuance of cashier’s or manager’s checks payable to cash, bearer of fictitious payee or number

will not be allowed.

+ Reasonable measures must be adopted to prevent the use of the bank’s facilities for money

laundering activities by criminal elements and the like

+ Developing bank personnel awareness on money laundering activities and combating the same;

and

+ Reporting of all covered and suspicious transactions to competent authorities as prescribed in

MORB.




PORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors and Management of the Rural Bank of Calbayog City Inc. (RBCCI)
ve that corporate governance is a critical component of sound strategic business management and
ill, therefore, undertake every effort necessary to create awareness within the organization to ensure
that the principles of fairness, accountability and transparency are indispensable in conducting the day-
to-day business of the bank. RBCCI’s operations is managed through properly established
organizational structure and adequate policies and procedures embodied in the Rural Bank of Calbayog
City, Inc. Policies and Procedures Manual approved by the Board of Directors.

RBCCTI’s Board of Directors operates with significant independence from its management. The
Chairman of the Board is a non-executive position and separately appointed from the President and
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

The Board of Directors consists of five (5) directors, one (1) of whom is classified as an
independent or having no interest or relationship with RBCCI at the time of election, appointment, or
re-election. Four (4) of the five (5) directors are non-executive officers of RBCCI, and the one executive
director is RBCCI’s President and CEO.

The members of the Board are elected annually by RBCCI stockholders during its Annual
Stockholders Meeting held every January. The Board of Directors convenes regular meetings in
accordance with a monthly cycle while special meetings may be called as needed.

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the
implementation of RBCCI’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate governance and values.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

arily accountable to the stockholders. It should provide them with a balanced/fair and
le assessment. The position and prospects, including interim and other reports on matters
adversely affect its business, as well as reports to regulators that are required by law;

principle of fairness refers to the protection of the rights of all shareholders, treatment in share
urchases, issuance of reports to all and by and large the specific policies on the treatment of
stakeholders;

It also covers the standards used both by the internal and external auditors in reporting their audit
findings; and the responsibilities of the board of directors and management are in no way diminished
by the existence of a system for the supervision of the bank by BSP or by a requirement for the bank’s
financial statement to be audited by an external auditor.

Board Composition. Pursuant to Sections 15 and 17 of R.A. No. 8791, there shall be at least five (5),
and a maximum of fifteen (15) members of the board of directors of a BANK’S: Provided, That in case
of a bank merger or consolidation, the number of directors may be increased up to the total number of
the members of board of directors of the merging or consolidating bank as provided for in their
respective articles of incorporation, but in no case to exceed twentyone (21). The board of directors
shall determine the appropriate number of its members to ensure that the number thereof is
commensurate to the size and complexity of the BANK’S’s operations.

To the extent practicable, the members of the board of directors shall be selected from a broad pool of
qualified candidates. Non-executive directors, who shall include independent directors, shall comprise
at least majority of the board of directors to promote the independent oversight of management by the
board of directors.

At least one-third (1/3) but not less than two (2) members of the board of directors shall be independent
directors: Provided, That any fractional result from applying the required minimum proportion, i.e.,
one-third (1/3), shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number: Provided, further, That in the case of
RBs, at least one (1) independent director shall be elected to the board of directors: Provided,
furthermore, That RBs whose business model is deemed complex by the Bangko Sentral, or as directed
by the appropriate supervising department, shall have at least one-third (1/3) but not less than two (2)
members of the board of directors as independent directors: Provided, finally, That any fractional result
from applying the required minimum proportion, i.e., one-third (1/3) shall be rounded-up to the nearest
whole number.

Non-Filipino citizens may become members of the board of directors of a BANK’S to the extent of the
foreignparticipation in the equity of said BANK’S: Provided, That pursuant to Section 23 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines (BP Blg. 68), a majority of the directors must be residents of the
Philippines
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ions. He must be fit and proper for the position of a director. In determining whether
and proper for the position of a director, the following matters must be considered:
bity, physical/mental fitness; relevant education/financial literacy/training; possession of
ncies relevant to the job, such as knowledge and experience, skills, diligence and independence
nd; and sufficiency of time to fully carry out responsibilities.

In assessing a director’s integrity/probity, consideration shall be given to the director’s market
reputation, observed conduct and behavior, as well as his ability to continuously comply with company
policies and applicable laws and regulations, including market conduct rules, and the relevant
requirements and standards of any regulatory body, professional body, clearing house or exchange, or
government and any of its instrumentalities/agencies.

An elected director has the burden to prove that he possesses all the foregoing minimum qualifications
and none of the cases mentioned under Sec. 138 (Persons disqualified to become directors).

A director shall submit to the Bangko Sentral the required certifications and other documentary proof
of such qualifications using Appendix 101 as guide within twenty (20) banking days from the date of
election. Non-submission of complete documentary requirements or their equivalent within the
prescribed period shall be construed as his failure to establish his qualifications for the position and
results in his removal from the board of directors.

The Bangko Sentral shall also consider its own records in determining the qualifications of a director.

The members of the board of directors shall possess the foregoing qualifications in addition to those
required or prescribed under R.A. No. 8791 and other applicable laws and regulations.

He must have attended a seminar on corporate governance for board of directors. A director shall submit
to the Bangko Sentral a certification of compliance with the Bangko Sentral-prescribed syllabus on
corporate governance for first-time directors and documentary proof of such compliance: Provided,
That the following persons are exempted from complying with the aforementioned requirement: (a)
Filipino citizens with recognized stature, influence and reputation in the banking community and whose
business practices stand as testimonies to good corporate governance; (b) Distinguished Filipino and
foreign nationals who served as senior officials in central banks and/or financial regulatory agencies,
including former Monetary Board members; or (c) Former Chief Justices and Associate Justices of the
Philippine Supreme Court:

Provided, further, That this exemption shall not apply to the annual training requirements for the
members of the board of directors.
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t and Non-Executive Directors Qualification.
non-executive director may concurrently serve as director in a maximum of five (5) publicly
listed companies. In applying this provision to concurrent directorship in entities within a
conglomerate, each entity where the non-executive director is concurrently serving as director
shall be separately considered in assessing compliance with this requirement; and

b) An independent director of a BSFI may only serve as such for a maximum cumulative term of
nine (9) years. After which, the independent director shall be perpetually barred from serving
as independent director in the same BSFI, but may continue to serve as regular director. The
nine (9) year maximum cumulative term for independent directors shall be reckoned from 2012

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors. The board of directors is primarily
responsible for defining the Bank’s vision and mission. The board of directors has the fiduciary
responsibility to the Bank and all its shareholders including minority shareholders. It shall approve
and oversee the implementation of strategies to achieve corporate objectives. It shall also approve and
oversee the implementation of the risk governance framework and the systems of checks and
balances. It shall establish a sound corporate governance framework. The board of directors shall
approve the selection of the CEO and key members of senior management and control functions and
oversee their performance.

a) The board of directors shall define the Bank’s corporate culture and values;

b) The board of directors shall be responsible for approving BSFI’s objectives and strategies and
in overseeing management’s implementation thereof;

c) The board of directors shall be responsible for the appointment/selection of key members of
senior management and heads of control functions and for the approval of a sound
remuneration and other incentives policy for personnel;

d) The board of directors shall be responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of
the Bnak’s corporategovernance framework;

e) The board of directors shall be responsible for approving BSFI’s risk governance framework
and overseeing management’s implementation thereof.
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CONDUCT

remain fit'and proper for the position for the duration of his term. A director is expected to
remain fit and proper for the position for the duration of his term. He should possess unquestionable
credibility to make decisions objectively and resist undue influence. He shall treat board directorship
as a profession and shall have a clear understanding of his duties and responsibilities as well as his
role in promoting good governance. Hence, he shall maintain his professional integrity and
continuously seek to enhance his skills, knowledge and understanding of the activities that RBCC
is engaged in or intends to pursue as well as the developments in the banking industry including
regulatory changes through continuing education or training;

To conduct fair business transactions with RBCCI to ensure that personal interest or that of his
colleagues does not bias board decisions. Directors should, whenever possible, avoid situations that
would give rise to a conflict of interest. If transactions with the Bank cannot be avoided, it should
be done in the regular course of business and upon terms not less favorable to RBCCI than those
offered to others. The basic principle to be observed is that a director should not use his position to
make profit or to acquire benefit or advantage for himself and/or his related interests. He should
avoid situations that would compromise his impartiality. If an actual or potential conflict of interest
may arise on the part of a Director, he should fully and immediately disclose it and should not
participate in the decision making process. A Director who has a continuing material conflict of
interest should seriously consider resigning from his position.

To act honestly and in good faith with loyalty and in the best interest of the RBCCI its
stockholders, regardless of the amount of their stockholdings, and other stakeholders such as its
depositors, investors, borrowers, other clients and the general public. A director must always act in
good faith, with the care which an ordinarily prudent man would exercise under similar
circumstances. While a director should always strive to promote the interest of all stockholders, he
should also give due regard to the rights and interests of other stakeholders;

To act judiciously after thorough consideration of all aspect of each matter for resolution.
Before deciding on any matter brought before the Board of Directors, every director should
thoroughly evaluate the issues, ask questions and seek clarifications when necessary;

To contribute significantly to the decision-making process of the board. Directors should actively
participate and exercise objective independent judgment on corporate affairs requiring the decision or
approval of such board;

To exercise independent judgment. A director should view each problem or situation objectively. When

a disagreement with others occurs, he should carefully evaluate the situation and state his position. He
should not be afraid to take a position even though it might be unpopular. Corollary, he should support
plans and ideas that he thinks will be beneficial to RBCCI,

To have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting RBCCI, including
the contents of its Amended Avrticles of Incorporation and Amended By-Laws, the requirements of the
BSP, SEC and where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory agencies. A director should also
keep himself informed of the industry developments and business trends in order to safeguard the bank’s
competitiveness; and

To observe confidentiality. Directors must observe the confidentiality of non-public information
acquired by reason of their position as directors. Director should not reveal confidential informajg
unauthorized persons without the authority of the Board.
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ard Composition

No. of
Name of Director Type of Director Years as
Director

No.of 9% of
Shares Shares

Chairman/Non-

Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta Executive 10 146 0.06%

Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento  President and CEO 7 35,327 15.47%
Ma. Rosario R. Santos Director 11 13,400 5.87

Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. Director 3 2 0.00%

Estephanie Guia G. Zilmar Independent Director 1 2 0.00%
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D OF DIRECTORS

Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta

Position:Chairman
Tenure

e Vice President, 2015-
2018

e Chairman, 2018-
present

Education

He received his B.A.
Philippine Studies at the
University of the Philippines

in 1988. /
g
‘




D OF DIRECTORS

Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento

Position:President and CEO
Tenure
e Director, 2015-2016

e President and CEO,
2016-present

Education

He Graduated at the University
of San Jose Recoletos in Cebu
City and studied law in
Adamson in 1999.




ARD OF DIRECTORS

Ma. Rosario R. Santos

Position:Director
Tenure
e President, 2014-2015
e Vice-President, 2015-2016
e Director, 2016-present

Education

She earned her degree in College
of Holy Spirit for Bachelor of
Science in Commerce degree in
1981 and Business Administration
course in U21 Global in 2008.




ARD OF DIRECTORS

Atty. Reynaldo M. Prudenciado, CPA

Position: Director
Tenure

e Director 2018-present

Education
He holds a degree for Bachelor of

Science in Accountancy year 2009
at Christ the King College-
Calbayog City and studied
Bachelor of Laws in Arellano
University year 2015.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Estephanie Guia G. Zilmar, CPA|

Position:Independent Director

Tenure

e Independent Director, 2021-
2022

Education
She holds a degree for Bachelor of
Science in Accountancy year 2013 at
University of the Philippines-
Tacloban City and currently studied
Masters in Business Adminstration at
UP Virata School of Business.
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RBCCI BOARD AND BOARD LEVEL COMMITEES

Board Commitees. The Board has established Committees to heighten the efficiency of Board
operations and assist in exercising its authority for oversight of internal and compliance and
performance monitoring of the Bank.

Internal Control And Audit (Compliance) Committee (ICACC).

Composed of at least three (3) members of the Board, two (2) of whom shall be
Directors and one (1) Independent Chairman. The Committee is responsible for
providing oversight in the bank’s compliance and audit functions.

Meetings and Attendance

Conduct of Meetings. The Chairman presides over meetings of the Board. Board and
committee meetings are conducted consistent with the Bank’s Amended By-Laws

Board ICACC

Number/Composition of Commitees 5 5
Frequency of Meetings Monthly Quartely
Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta v

Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento v

Ma. Rosario R. Santos v

Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. v

Estephanie Guia G. Zilmar v

Total No. of Meetings held during year 12

(29]




ng of Meetings.In accordance with its By-Laws, the Board schedules and holds
ly regular meetings and convenes for special meetings as needed by business exigencies.
lor to each meeting, the directors are provided with the notice, agenda, and other relevant
meeting materials, and the meeting is duly minuted.

%
BOARD  Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta 12/12 100%
Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento 12/12 100%
Ma. Rosario R. Santos 12/12 100%
Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. 12/12 100%
Estephanie Guia G. Zilmar 7112 88%
]
ICACC Ma. Rosario R. Santos 4/4 100%
Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. 4/4 100%
Estephanie Guia G. Zilmar 214 50%

Meetings Held Remotely. Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the Bank has
adopted virtual meeting platforms and invested in the necessary equipment, video and web
conferencing software.

These alternative means of communication for Board and board committee meetings follow
BSP and SEC guidance on the conduct of meetings held remotely by electronic means.
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ANAGEMENT

I’S OFFICERS AND SENIOR

the board of directors are consistently adopted across RBCCI,;

To set the tone of good governance from the top. Bank officers shall promote the good
governance practices within the bank by ensuring that policies on governance as approved by

To oversee the day-to-day management of the bank. Bank officers shall ensure that bank's
activities and operations are consistent with the bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy,
corporate values and policies as approved by the board of directors. They shall establish a bank-
wide management system characterized by strategically aligned and mutually reinforcing
performance standards across RBCCI,;

To ensure that duties are
effectively delegated to the staff
and to establish a management
structure that promotes
accountability and transparency.
RBCCI officers shall establish
measurable standards, initiatives
and specific responsibilities and
accountabilities for each bank
personnel. Bank officers shall
oversee the performance of these
delegated duties and
responsibilities and shall
ultimately be responsible to the
board of directors for the
performance of the bank; and

To promote and strengthen
checks and balances systems in
RBCCI, bank officers shall
promote sound internal controls
and avoid activities that shall
compromise  the  effective

dispense of their functions. Further, they shall ensure that they give due recognition to the
importance of the internal audit, compliance and external audit functions.

Alan Giles Mary S.
Sarmiento

Mara S. Mahusay
Jaelyn D. Arboiz
Sarah Caparas

President/CEO

Corporate Secretary
Treasurer

Compliance Officer

2021 Section Heads and Branch Heads

Teresa Bebia R. Flores

Jocelyn C. Gelomio

Ma. Imelda C. Rofio
Jaelyn D. Arboiz
Karl Joshua Afiora

Sherlyn S. Sabar
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Branch Head

Branch Head-Allen
Branch

Branch Head- Sta.
Margarita

Branch Head- Oquendo

Cash Management
Head

Internal Auditor




ERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

As performance evaluation of the RBCCI’s BODs is central to corporate governance,

the BODs values inputs and suggestions that feedback mechanisms to assist them as reflected
in their performance as individual directors and as a governing body.

The assessment aims to evaluate the performance of the BODs as an individual director,

a body, and a Board Committee. The assessment also serves as a means to appraise a director’s
attendance at Board and Committee meetings, participation in boardroom discussions, and
manner of voting on material issues raised and is established to ensure that strategic goals and
objectives flow from the top of the organization to the personal objectives of each employee.

POLICY

1.

2.

w

Self-assessment shall be in the form of a questionnaire to be provided to each directors
on a yearly basis.

The accomplishment of the assessment forms/questionnaire must be done individually,
on a per director basis to secure an honest, unbiased, independent and anonymous view
from each director rather than a collective assessment, which is subject to filtering and
pre-agreement.

The Board-level Committee shall be evaluated by the BODs.

The President and CEO, as well as the appointed bank Officers shall be evaluated by the
BODs.

The BODs shall be given five (5) banking days to accomplish the self-assessment
forms/questionnaire.

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

competence and independence reflecting the efficiency and effectiveness of the BODs; (b)
commitment to corporate governance; and (c) the specific duties, responsibilities and
accountabilities of each Board member, if any, in line with RBCCI’s By-laws, Policies and
Procedures Manual, and other regulations as provided.

The self-assessment questionnaire covers a thorough evaluation criteria focused on (a)
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The following performance rating scale shall be used as the standard scoring for self-
assessment and performance evaluation for Board-level Committee, President and CEO, and
appointed bank Officers.

Very Needs

Excellent . Satisfactor
Satisfactory y Improvement

TABULATION OF RESULTS

The Compliance Officer shall be responsible in calculating the results of the evaluation
using the following computation:

1. Average score for each line item / question — the sum of all the rates divided by the total
number of directors.

2. Average score for each category — the sum of the average score for each line item divided
by the total number of questions per category.

3. Average total score for each director — the sum of the average score for each category
divided by the number of categories.




ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION

To make sure that all personnel are properly trained, supervised, and made aware of the
existence of specific laws, rules, and regulations as well as the ethical standards of the RBCCI,
the Compliance Officer/Internal Audit Head has provided internal orientation and trainings for
both the existing staff and the newly hired employees.

Qualified staff will have access to initial training in compliance standards and procedures from
the Compliance Officer/Internal Audit Head, as well as enhanced training through online
education programs and attendance at banking seminars, training sessions, and compliance
workshops.

RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION

Retirement. The employee submits his/her Retirement Letter to the President and CEO
as endorsed by the employee’s immediate superior (as applicable). The Retirement Letter shall
be forwarded to the Cashier who will review the employee’s records for the retirement pay
computation. The final computation shall be submitted to the President and CEO for review
and endorsement to the BoD for approval. Upon final approval of the retirement computation
by the BoD, the employee’s final pay may be issued and released.

In able to ensure the continuous carrying of duties and functions that are critical to the
operation of the Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. (RBCCI) and its services to clients, the
Board of Directors (BoD) is adopting policies and procedures for the temporary
appointment of Director/s and President and CEO, as well as other officers, in the event of
absence, unplanned and extended of the aforementioned officer/s.

In addition, the top management of RBCCI also believes that due diligence in exercising
its governance functions requires that this succession plan is in place. This succession plan is
expected to safeguard continuity in external relationships and in staff functioning.

POLICIES

The termination of employment initiated by the Company for employees who have reache
age of sixty-five (65) years. Retired employees who have rendered at least ten (10) y;
service shall be entitled to a retirement benefit to half month per year of service ba
employee’s final daily salary. However, the retired employee has the option to
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in the company. For purposes of computation of the retirement benefit based on
er of years of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months shall be considered as one (1)
ole year. Computation of length of service shall commence from the most recent unbroken
eriod of active service rendered by the employee. For monthly paid employees, the equivalent
daily salary is arrived at by multiplying the Monthly Basic Salary (MBS) by 12 and dividing
the product by 313. The final MBS shall be the latest, prior to the effective date of retirement
or resignation. The MBS shall not include any type of emoluments or benefits such as bonuses,
overtime pay, incentives, work-related allowances, or other forms of monetary benefits which
are not part of the basic salary of the covered year.

An act or omission of an employee that constitutes just cause for termination of
employment shall automatically disqualify the employee from entitlement any benefits under
this policy. The benefits that will be issued to the qualified employee will be included in the
computation and processing of the employee’s final accountabilities. The benefit under this
policy shall be paid to the qualified employee in lump sum.

e Anunplanned absence is one that arises unexpectedly, in contrast to a planned leave,
such as a vacation or sabbatical.

e A temporary absence is one in which it is expected that the director or
officer will return to his position once the events precipitating the absence are
resolved.

e A short-term absence is expected to last in Three (3) months or less.

e A long-term absence is more than Three (3) months.

President and CEO. The Board of Directors shall choose within its membership through a
majority vote not later than second (2nd) regular session immediately from the session to which
the President is absent.

Director. In the event a Member of the Board is incapable or unavailable, the Board
of Directors may choose prior to the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting from within the list of
stockholders of the bank through its majority vote. However, in the event the BoD
decides not to select or fails to choose within the term of the absentee, the Presiding Officer
shall prevent to cast his vote in the decision-making of the BoD to maintain the odd number
and arrive to a certain decision.

Independent Director. In the event the Independent Director of the Board is incapable
or unavailable. The Board of Directors shall choose within the list of stockholders of the bank
through its majority vote, a stockholder with minor shareholdings and qualified based
on the Manual of Regulations for Bank (MORB).
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ce Officer/ Internal Auditor. The Compliance Assistant shall immediately
the position of the Compliance Officer in acting capacity. The Internal

itor Assistant shall immediately assume the position of the Internal Auditor in acting
apacity. In the event that the Compliance Assistant and the Internal Auditor Assistant is
incapable or unavailable, the Board of Directors shall select within the operation an
officer, through a majority vote of the BoD, to assume the position of the Compliance
Officer and the Internal Auditor in acting capacity. Provided however, that the appointee shall
relieve from the duties and functions of the position prior to the appointment of the
BoD.

Cashier. The Cashier Assistant shall immediately assume the position of the Cashier in
acting capacity. In the event the Cashier Assistant is incapable or unavailable, the
President and CEO shall choose within the operation an officer on non-officer to assume
the position of the Cashier in acting capacity. Provided however, that the appointment of
the officer or non-officer shall be reported by the appointing officer to the BOD.

Branch Head. The President and CEO shall choose within the operation an officer or non-
officer to assume the position of the Branch Head in acting capacity.

Upon the affectivity of the appointment of the appointee, in case of vacancy of the President
and CEQO’s position, the appointee shall communicate the temporary position structure of
RBCCI to concerned institutions or agencies, government or non-government, as necessity
arises. In general, the President and CEO or his substitute shall make the necessary
communication. The appointee shall have the full authority for the decision-making in
line with the duties and functions of the assigned position. Any restriction of a particular
duty and function may be expressly applied by the appointing authority.

A permanent absence is one in which it is firmly determined that the concerned director or
officer will not be returning to the position. The procedures and conditions shall be the same
as mentioned. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint a Director, President and
CEO or Cashier in permanent capacity within Three (3) months of service of the appointee in
acting capacity. The Succession Plan shall be approved by the full Board of Directors
through its unanimous decision and signed by the Board of Directors, Corporate Secretary,
and President and CEO. Copies of the signed Succession Plan shall be maintained by the
Chairman of the Board, Corporate Secretary, President and CEO, and Compliance Officer /
Internal Auditor.
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EMUNERATION POLICY

And Officers. The RBCCI’s Amended By-Laws provides that Officers and

ors shall receive such compensation for their services as may from time to time be

ed by the stockholders subject to the limitations set forth in Section 29 of the Corporation
Code. Each director shall also be entitled to a reasonable per diem, as may be determined by
the Board. The officers’ salary or compensation elected or appointed by the Board of
Directors shall be fixed by the Board

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A potential area of abuse arises from granting credit to connected and related parties/interests,
whether companies or individuals. Related parties/interests typically include major
shareholders, directors, and executive/management officers. The relationship includes the
ability to exert control over or influence the bank policies and decision-making, especially
concerning credit decisions.

RBCCT’s ability to systematically identify and track extensions of credit to insiders is crucial.

The issue is whether credit decisions are made on a rational basis and according to approved
policies and procedures. An additional concern is whether credit is based on market terms or is
granted on terms that are more favourable with regard to amount, maturity, rate, and collateral,
than those provided to the general public. Transactions with related parties/interest will not be
allowed by the board of directors.

We maintain a registry of related parties (RPs) which is regularly updated based on the results
of RP analyses, as part of the Know-Your-Customer process, conducted by the Cash Section.

We are committed in ensuring strict compliance with laws, regulations, and reporting
requirements relating to DOSRI and RPTs by instituting rigorous vetting processes and
establishing adequate controls and oversight mechanisms.

RBCCI CONGLOMERATE STRUCTURE

RBCCI-Main
Branch

RBCCI- Allen RBCCI- Oquendo RBCCI- Sta. Monev Sho
Branch Branch Margarita Branch y P

(37]



ELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION

ternal Control and Audit(Compliance) Committee, which shall be composed of an
endent board member, preferably with accounting and finance experience the audit
mmittee provides oversight of RBCCI’s auditors. It shall monitor and evaluate the adequacy
and effectiveness of the internal control system. The Board of Directors shall ensure that the
Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee shall maintain appropriate records (e.g.,
minutes of meetings or summary of matters reviewed and decisions taken) of their deliberations
and decisions. Such records shall document the committee's fulfillment of its responsibilities
and facilitate the assessment of the effective performance of its functions. Overall Roles and
Responsibilities of the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee recommends
policies and processes to the board related to:

a) The organization’s financial statements and other financial information provided
to governmental bodies, financial institutions, rating agencies, and the public.

b) The organization’s systems of internal controls for finance, accounting, legal
compliance and ethics, according to policies that management and the board of
directors have established.

c) The organization’s auditing, accounting, financial reporting, and compliance
processes. Consistent with this function, the Internal Control and Audit
(Compliance) Committee should encourage continuous improvement of, and
promote adherence to, the organization’s policies, procedures, and practices for
accountability, transparency, and integrity. Throughout its work, the Internal
Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee will serve as an independent and
objective party to monitor the organization’s financial reporting process, internal
control systems and ethics.

ICACC ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Internal Control and
Audit (Compliance)

Committee Chairman
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mmittee will provide an open avenue of communication among the independent auditor,
ncial and senior management, the internal audit, and the governing body.

The Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee meets at least every quarter or when
necessary at the call of the committee chair. The Internal Control and Audit(Compliance)
Committee shall be composed of at least three (3) members of the board of directors, including
the chairperson, preferably with accounting, auditing, or related financial management
expertise or experience commensurate with the size, complexity of operations and risk profile
of the bank. To the greatest extent possible, the audit committee shall be composed of a
sufficient number of independent and non-executive board members. Further, the President and
Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer or officers holding equivalent positions, shall not be
appointed as members of the audit committee.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Assessment Program provide the policies and procedures
in the implementation of the activities relative to Internal Audit as well as that of the
Compliance Assessment.

Compliance Officer. Oversight of the Compliance by the bank, ensuring that it runs in
compliance with external legal and regulatory requirements, compliance with external
requirements, internal policies, and rules and the enforcement of its observance.

Compliance Officer is set up to include Corporate Compliance and Regulatory Governance,
compliance with anti-money laundering laws, Compliance Monitoring, and the Office for Data
Privacy. In light of the quick changes in the regulatory environment, as well as the increasing
complexity of the Bank's services and products, the Compliance Office develops in its
operations, transactions, and anticipating coverage of compliance practice areas and overcome
new challenges. The domain and scope of the compliance function are modified for fresh and
developing compliance risk sources.

Internal Audit. shall cover the audit/evaluation of activities, processes, work areas and
services being rendered. Such evaluation shall also include RBCCI practices, policies,
procedures, processes, systems and instructions.

Our Internal Audit is a separate organization that aids the ICAC Committee incarrying out its
duties for oversight by offering a neutral evaluation of the suitability and efficacy of The Bank's
internal controls, risk management, and through defined risk-based audit programs that focus
on governance mechanisms.

The Compliance Officer/Internal Auditor shall determine the purpose of the Internal
Compliance Assessment activities of RBCCI and the general scope of each activit
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gulations, standards or documents shall be used in the audit/assessment as norms. The

pliance Officer/Internal Auditor shall inform the RBCCI personnel about the objectives

nd scope of the audit/assessment for the same to cooperate with the internal auditor
/compliance assessor to permit the audit/assessment objective/s to be achieved.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Represents the amount of the dividend declared by the Board of Directors or be paid at a determined
future date. Declaration of dividend shall also be subject from MORB requirement under Section 124.

Payment of dividends. Dividend declaration is ultimately the responsibility of our Bank and our Board
which has the authority to declare dividends as it may deem appropriate. Under BSP regulations, no
bank shall declare dividends greater than its accumulated net profits then on hand, deducting therefrom
its losses and bad debts. The net amount available for dividends shall be the amount of unrestricted or
free retained earnings less loss provisioning which takes into account relevant capital adjustments
including losses, bad debts, and unearned profits or income.

As approved by the Board, a cash dividend to the Stockholders Php 2.00 pesos per stock share or a total
value of Four Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Eight pesos (P 456,648.00) as reported
to the BSP dividend declaration dated January 07, 2022. This is evidence to the commitment of RBCCI
to serve the interest of the stockholders and investors.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Management is currently connected to the government like Department of Agriculture
through ACPC and DTI for their programs. Since then, the bank helped numerous small farmers,
fisherfolks, Micro and small business entrepreneurs who are not qualified by big commercial banks.

Now the bank participates in helping the local agricultural and aquaculture industry. Moreover,
the bank is in process in participating the Department of Agriculture’s Programs through ACPC -
Expanded SURE Aid and Recovery Project, ANYO and KAYA to help micro and small enterprises and
small marginal farmers and fishers adversely affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic.

CONSUMER PROTECTION

RBCCI employees ensure that the clients have a reasonable holistic understanding of the products
and services, which they may be acquiring or availing. Thus, any information given to consumer
whether in writing, electronically or orally should be fair, clear, transparent, and easily comprehensible
for them to make an informed choice about a product or service. This is made possible by providing the
consumer with ready access to information that accurately represents the nature and structure of the
product or service, its terms and conditions, as well as its fundamental benefits and risks. RBCCI
employees adhere to the following principles:

o Ensures that offering documents of products and services contain the information necessary for
customers to be able to make an informed judgment of the product or service. All key features
and risks of the products are highlighted prominently in a succinct manner. Where a product is
being offered on a continuous basis, it’s offering documents is updated in accordance with the
RBCCT’s existing policies.

e Readily and consistently makes available to the customer a written copy of the Terms and
Conditions that apply to a product or service. The contents are fully disclosed and explained to
customers before initiating a transaction. Where and when warranted, reference to the Terms
and Conditions are made while transacting with the consumer and before consummating the
transaction, if such reference is material to the understanding of the consumer of the nature of
the product or service, as well as its benefits and risks. As a written document, the Terms and
Conditions are complete but concise, easily understandable, accurate, and presented in a manner
that facilitates the consumer’s comprehension.
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rms and Conditions includes at least the following:

The full price or cost to the customer including all interest, fees, charges, and penalties. The
Terms and Conditions clearly state whether interest, fees, charges, and penalties can change over time.
The method for computing said interest, fees, charges, and penalties are presented in accordance with
Truth in Lending dated 20 July 2011. The Bank may only charge interest based on the outstanding
balance of a loan at the beginning of an interest period. For a loan where principal is payable in
installments, interest per installment period shall be calculated based on the outstanding balance of the
loan at the beginning of each installment period.

o General information about the operation of the products or services including the customer’s
obligations and liabilities;

e Cancellation, return and exchange policies, and any related cost;
e The actions and remedies which the Bank may take in event of a default by the customer;

e Procedures to report unauthorized transactions and other contingencies, as well as the liabilities
of parties in such case; and

e A summary of the Bank’s complaints handling procedure.

Advises customers to read and understand the applicable Terms and Conditions, when considering a
product or service.

Communicates in such a manner that clients can understand the terms of the contract, their rights and
obligations. Staff communicates with techniques that address literacy limitations, e.g., (1) where a
consumer is unable to understand English, provide an oral explanation in a language the consumer
understands; or (2) where a consumer is unable to understand written information, explain orally to the
consumer the written information.

Provides customer adequate time to review the Terms and Conditions of the product or service,
asks questions and receives additional information prior to signing contracts or executing the
transaction. The staff is available to answer the questions and clarifications from the financial customer.

Fully knowledgeable about the products and services marketed, including statutory and
regulatory requirements, and can explain the nuances to the consumer.

Uses a variety of communication channels to disclose clear and accurate information. Such

communication channels is available to the public without need for special access requirements, which
may entail additional expense. Communication channels should be sufficiently.
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ELINES IN HANDLING CUSTOMER

OMPLAINTS

Complaints shall be written or electronically given will be accepted. However, RBCCI shall

place suggestion and complaints box for every branch and shall be placed were people can clearly see
the sign for customer may drop their concern.

Process in handling a complaint.

The concern department will be the one to provide the answer within 5 banking days from the
receipt.

The President and CEO and Chief Compliance Officer will be given a copy of the answer within
5 banking days.

The President and CEO will determine if the complaint needs board action or not and will be
submitted in the next board of director’s meeting. The answer will be given to the via email or
mail to the complainant, if the complaint is resolved.

Cases cannot be resolved the president shall report to the board of director for approval
additional policies or procedures, not limited to written reprimand in cases RBCCI’s employees
are at fault. Furthermore, the written reprimand will be forward to the employee and to the CCO
for proper performance evaluation action.

Moreover, in connection with the Truth in Lending Act, the management established a tool

which links to the disclosure and amortizations recognized by the system, clarified by the Credit and
Collection Officer and acknowledged by the borrower. The management provide a
suggestion/complaints box to identify the clients concerns for further improvement. The new system
(CyberOne) is used and generates the correct EIR computation that was already disclosed. Adopted
policy for the consumer protection practices is included in RBCC Policies and Procedures.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

Stockholders Name Citizenship No. of % of
Shares Stockholdings

ANCHETA, Ma. Ines S. Filipino 4,080 1.79%
CORRALES, Felipa Maxima Viloria Filipino 10,000 4.38%
MORALES, Maria Isabel Dolores S. Filipino 6,580 2.88%
PEREZ, Ma. Lourdes S. Filipino 4,080 1.79%
ROSALES, Olivia Chanco Filipino 27,682 12.12%
SANTOS, Ma. Fatima R. Filipino 9,080 3.98%
SANTOS, Ma. Margarita R. Filipino 5,080 2.22%
SANTOS, Ma. Rosario R. Filipino 13,400 5.87%
SANTOS, Maria Milagros R. Filipino 6,580 2.88%
SANTOS, Milagros R. Filipino 24,486 10.72%
SCHNABLE, Carmina R. Filipino 22,462 9.84%
SARMIENTO, Alan Giles Mary S. Filipino 35,327 15.47%
ROSALES, Augusto Filipino 2,530 1.11%
ROSALES, Bienvenido P. Filipino 10,436 4.57%
ROSALES, Teresita Filipino 4,589 2.01%
ROSALES, Tomas C. Filipino 2,333 1.02%
SARAOQO, Felix Domingo Filipino 3,181 1.39%
SARAO, Luzita Filipino 2,956 1.29%
GOMEZ, Dominador Filipino 5,032 2.20%
SANTOS, Silvia Filipino 4,055 1.78%
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KEY OFFICERS

Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento President/CEO

Mara S. Mahusay Corporate Secretary
Jaelyn D. Arboiz Treasurer

Sarah Caparas Compliance Officer
Teresa Bebia R. Flores Branch Head

Jocelyn C. Gelomio g:gﬂgu 7GR

Ma. Imelda C. Rofio II\B/Ir:chahriI;ead- Sta.
Jaelyn D. Arboiz Branch Head- Oquendo
Karl Joshua Afora Cash Management Head
Reynaldo R. Catioc Jr. IC_ilgeac(ijit i) Gl
Sherlyn S. Sabar Internal Auditor
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

ATM/POS Transactions
/ Loans
R~ e Unsecured
e Secured

SAFE DEPOSIT Obpening of New Accounts

&,

* https://rbcalbayog.com/ Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc

BRANCHES AND BRANCH-LITE UNITS

. Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. — Head Office - 82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog
City, Samar

. Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. — Sta. Margarita Branch - Brgy. Cautod, Maharlika
Highway, Sta. Margarita, Samar

. Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. — Allen Branch - Sabang 1, Allen, Northern Samar

. Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. — Moneyshop Extension Office - Calbayog New
Public Market, Brgy. Bagacay, Calbayog City, Samar

. Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. — Oquendo Extension Office - Oquendg
Market, Oquendo District, Calbayog City, Samar
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

period, Furthermore, the Management is -responsible for all information and
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. is responsidle for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein, and for such intemal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
muammmm.swmmmwmwmmm )
Mwmmdmmmme“hmwmeubm'
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

UHY M.L AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs, the independent auditor appointed by the stockhoiders for the :

-mmmm.mmm.mmwwmmduwkm
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its reports to the stockholders, has
expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit:
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UH M.L. Aguirre & Co.,CPAs

1806 Cityland
, P Te T r
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT oy Lrodiany B

Makan City

Metjo _Manh. 1231
Stockholiders and Board of Directors Rilpoines
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. Phone +&3 2 8555 0834
82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City tmall  ask@mlaguire crg
6710 Western Samar, Philippines Web  www.misguirre org

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. (the “Bank”"),
which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards — (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We concluded our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines,
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibiiities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards — (PFRS) and for such internal control as
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the
going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from meterial misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Further descriptions of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements are
indicated in the Appendix | of this auditor's report.

Report on the Supplementary information Required Under Revenue Regulations and BSP Circular
1074

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The suppiementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010, Revenue
Regulations 34-2020 and BSP Circular 1074 to the financial statements are presented for purposes of
filing with Bureau of Internal Revenue and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, respectively, and are not
required parts of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
Management of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs

Tax Identification No. 006-533-775

BOA Accreditation No. 4511

July 9, 2021 valid untit May 14, 2024

BIR Accreditation No.08-005582-000-2021
September 13, 2021 valid untll September 12, 2024
BSP Accredited

Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2018,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

SEC Group B Accreditation No. 4511-SEC

October 28, 2021 valid until October 27, 2022

NEA Accreditation No. 2020-12-00069

December 11, 2020 valid until December 10, 2023
CDA Accreditation No. 038-AF

April 21, 2021 valid until April 20, 2024

IC Accreditation No, 4511-IC

September 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025

me {.

MICHAEL L. AGUIRRE
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 087376
PRC ID Expiry Date September 11, 2024
BOA Accreditation No. 4511
July 9, 2021 valid until May 14, 2024
BSP Accredited
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2018,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023
SEC Group B Accreditation No. 97376-SEC
October 28, 2021 valid until October 27, 2022
Tax Identification No. 182-084-772
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005582-001-2021
October 11, 2021, valid until October 10, 2024
IC Accreditation No. 97378-IC
September 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025
PTR No. 8853349
Issued on January §, 2022
Makati City

April 18, 2022

Makati City, Philippines




APPENDIX |

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.




UH M.L. Aguirre & Co.,CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ;"’5 C g:"d
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN Sory ey o B

Makati City
Metro Manila, 1231

Stockholders and Board of Directors Philippines

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

82 T. Bugalion Street, Calbayog City e

6710 Western Samar, Philippines Wed  www miaguirre org

We have audited the financial statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year
ended December 31, 2021 on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 18, 2022.

In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating the following:

1, The schedule of taxes paid and accrued by the above Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2021 Is attached to the Annual Income Tax Retumn.

2. We are not related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal
stockholders of the Bank.

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs

Tax |dentification No. 008-533-775

BOA Accreditation No. 4511

July 8, 2021 valid until May 14, 2024

BIR Accreditation No,08-005582-000-2021
September 13, 2021 valid until September 12, 2024
BSP Accredited

Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

SEC Group B Accreditation No. 4511-SEC

October 28, 2021 valid until October 27, 2022

NEA Accreditation No. 2020-12-00089

December 11, 2020 valid until December 10, 2023
CDA Accreditation No, 038-AF

April 21, 2021 valid until April 20, 2024

IC Accreditation No. 4511-IC

September 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025

M‘wéﬁzs

MICHAEL L. AG

CPA Certificate No. 097376

PRC 1D Expiry Date September 11, 2024

BOA Accreditation No. 4511

July 8, 2021 valid until May 14, 2024

BSP Accredited

Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2018,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

SEC Group B Accreditation No. 87376-SEC
October 28, 2021 valid until October 27, 2022
Tax Identification No. 182-084-772

BIR Accreditation No, 08-005582-001-2021
October 11, 2021, valid until October 10, 2024
IC Accreditation No. 97376-IC

September 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025
PTR No. 8853849

Issued on January 5, 2022
Makati City

April 18, 2022
» ~Makat City, Poivpeines od cormtng e




UH M.L. Aguirre & Co.,CPAs

1806 Cityland
Pasong Tama Tower
SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF AUDITOR ity o

Motro Manils, 1234

NWI“B
Stockholders and Board of Directors Fhore +63 2 8555 0834
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. e m“"“m'&“u",;‘;gg

82 7. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City
8710 Western Samar, Philippines

We have audited the financal statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year
ended December 31, 2021 on which we have rendered the attached report datad April 18, 2022

In compliance with the Revised Secunties Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the Bank has a
total number of sixty-six (68) stockhoiders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each.

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs

Tax Identification No. 006-533-775

BOA Accreditation No. 4511

July 9, 2021 valid until May 14, 2024

BIR Accreditation No,08-005562-000-2021
September 13, 2021 valid until September 12, 2024
BSP Accredited

Vakid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

SEC Group B Accreditation No. 4511-SEC

October 28, 2021 valid untii October 27, 2022

NEA Accreditation No. 2020-12-00088

Oecember 11, 2020 valid until December 10, 2023
CDA Accreditation No. 038-AF

April 21, 2021 valid until April 20, 2024

IC Accreditation No, 4511-IC

September 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025

% Yuisay L. O
MICHAEL L. AGUIRRE
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 087376
PRC 1D Expiry Date September 11, 2024
BOA Accreditation No. 4511
July 8, 2021 valid until May 14, 2024
BSP Accredited
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023
SEC Group B Accreditation No. 97376-SEC
Cctober 28, 2021 valid until October 27, 2022
Tax ldentfication No. 182-084-772
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005582-001-2021
October 11, 2021, valid untll October 10, 2024
IC Accreditation No. 87376-IC
Saptember 3, 2021 valid until September 2, 2025
PTR No. 8853948
Issued on January 5, 2022
Makati City

April 18, 2022
Makati City, Philippines
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2021 and 2020
{in Philipging Pesa)

Pobess 2021 2020
ASSETS
Cash and other cash items a 4,440 945 4,053,719
Due from Bangko Sendral ng Pilipinas 10 5.645,750 5,726,328
Due from ather banks 10 B7,5626 BT 88,909,706
Financial assets al amortized cost 11 673,752 1,651,105
Loans and other receivables - net 12 76,551,383 65,470,000
Bank premises, fumiture, fixdures and equipment - net 13 8as 327 754, 854
Right-of-use assat - net 14 98,565 321428
Intangible asset - net 15 475,009 496,003
Investment properties - net 18 1.568 175 861,875
Deferred tax asset 3 25 45T 421,189
Oither assels 17 415,716 412,354
TOTAL ASSETS 178.310,955 168 87B 561
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposit liabidiies
Savings oeposils 18 126,974,858 114,103,619
Time deposits 12 7,338 7,329
126,982 196 114,110,848
Bills payabie 18 4,905,328 9,999,850
Retirermant liability 20 1,623,064 1,623 064
Lease kability 1l 103,162 327,999
Income tax payable TE 401 16.705
Accrued interest payable = 43,394 17,51
Other liabilities ] 839,152 325,162
TOTAL LIABILITIES 134,572,697 126,421,250
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Common Stock 4 20,000,000 20,000,000
Preferred Stock 4 2,832 400 2,832 400
Surplus Free 20,905 858 19,624 902
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY 43,738,258 42 457 302
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 178,310,958  163,878.561

[See Accompanying iWotes fo Fnancial Stalements)
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Faor The Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{ In Prilipgine Peso )

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Hotee 2021 2020
INTEREST INCOME
Loans and ather receivables 1228 10,661,435 8,495 996
Sales contract receivable 12,58 483 455 563,082
Dwe from other banks 10,25 165,583 246 475
Financial assels at amortized cost 11,35 12,1583 G5, 648
11,322 628 8,371,201
INTEREST EXPENSE AND FINANCE CHARGES
Deposit liabilities 18,25 640,781 57T 249
Lease liability .56 15,163 16,251
Bills payable 191,26 - 31,389
655,924 624 BE9
MET INTEREST INCOME 10,666,702 8,748 312
Provision for credit losses = =
MET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR
CREDIT LOSSES 10,666,702 -
OTHER INCOME
Fees and commission Fad 457,892 225 467
Other income 7 2,864,432 1,972,000
3,352,324 2,197 467
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 14,019,026 10,943 779
OPERATING EXPEMSES ] 12,063,169 10,656,301
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,965,857 287 478
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 30 455,428 69 970
PROFIT 1,500,429 217 508

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[(Ser Accomparnying Nobes o Snancial Sialements)

1,500,429

217,508



RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

i Prilippne Peso)
Mok “"m’:;““ P"'u';:":“' Surplus Free  Total
Balance at January 1, 2020 F 20000000 2832400 18016815 40840215
Prior period adjustments 35 . 1,390579 1390579
Balance at January 1, 2020 - as restated 20000000 2832400 19407354 42236704
Tolal comprehansive income - 217,508 217 508
Balance at December 31, 2020 20000000 2832400 19624802 42457302
Balance at January 1, 2021 4 20000000 2832400 19,624 802 42 457 302
Prior period adjustments 3 - - 237475 237175
Balance at January 1, 2021 - as restated 20000000 2832400 19862077 42604 477
Payment of cash dividends n . - (456848)  (456648)
Tokal comprehensive Ncome - - 1,500 429 1500429
Balance at December 31, 2021 20000000 2832400 20805858 43,736,258

{Saw Arcampanying Motes 1o Financial Siatamants)




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Yeerns Ended Decembar 31, 2021 and 2020
{In Philpping Pasa)
Hofes 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proit before income tax 1,955 85T 28T ATE

fdjustments for:
Irlerest expense
Depreciafion and amorfization
Prior period adjusiments
IrlEresd income

BB U R

655,924 592,500
345,983 Ja4 152
BTATS 1,390,579
(177,736) [312,123)

Ciperating cash fiows before working capital changes
Changas in operating assets and liabiibes
Decraase (Incraase) in:
Loans and othar receivanles - nat

3,020,403 2303 566

[11,081,383) (10,745, 549)

Other assels {668.800) 656,524
Inciease [decieass) in:
Deposil kabilies 12871248 9450324
Aeerued inlerest payable 28 BEY (2,087)
Dither liabililies 513,590 (2,099 3849)
Cash generaled lrom (used in] operabons 4681321 (434571)
Income tax paid {16705)  (128,857)
Interast pad . (578,316)
interesi recerved 25 177,736 2123

Net cash generaled from (used in) cperating activibes

4842382 (831.621)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal on matunbies of financial asset at amorfeed cost
Procesds from desposal of investment properties
Acquisition of bank premises, fumiure, fidures and equipment
Aequisition of infangible sssel

477,353 1,464 545

(¥06,300) 700,000
{198417)  (200,000)
(185,500)

et cash generafed from (used in) invesling acliviies

127,364) _ 1679,145

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of cash dwidends
Procesds from (paymant of) bills payable

Payment of laase |labllity

456 B44) .
[5.094,522) 7,499 B50
[24D,000) (192,000

el cash generated from (used in) financing achviies

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(1.076,182)  BI55.374
98,689,783 00 534 379

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

BT 813,5T1 &48,680, 753

{fes Accompanyieg Nolss fo Francal Sakmeats)




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{In Phili ppine Peso)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC, (“the Bank™) was incorporated and registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1959 with Registration Mo,
14952 and granted by the Bangko Senfral ng Pilipinas (BSP) an authority to operate on February 7,
1959,

The Bank was organized under Rural Bank Act of 1952 (Republic Act Mo. 720, as amended by
Republic Act No. T353) primarily to camy and engage in the business of extending rural credit to small
farmers and tenants and to deserving rural industries or enterprises; tohave and exercise all authority
and powers, to do and perform all acts, and to transact all business which may legally be had or done
by Rural Banks crganized under and in accordance with the Rural Banks' Act, as it exists or may be
amended, and to do all other things incident thereto and necessary and proper in connection with
said purpose within such termitory as may be determined by the Monetary Board of the Central
Bank of the Philippines. The Bank is also subject to the provisions of Republic Act (RA) No.8T91,
otherwise as the General Banking Law of 2000.

The Bank's principal address which is also its registered address located at 82 T, Bugallon Street,
Calbayog City, Samar and is domiciled in the Philippines. The Bank cumently holds its main office at
Calbayog City, Samar,

Other than the main office, it has curmently two (2) branches and one (1) extension office located at:

Mo, Branches/ Extension Office Address
1 Allen (Branch) Rizal St. Sabang |, Allen, Northerm Samar
2 Sta. Margarita (Branch) Brgy. Monbaon, Sta. Margarita, Samar

Stall #170 New Public Market, Brgy. Bagacay.

3 Moneyshop (Extension Qffice) Calt City, Samar

2. FINAMNCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK, BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PAS), and Interpretations issued by the Philippine Interpretations Committes (PIC), Standard
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted
by SEC.

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with PFRS, as modified by
the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by the SEC in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic: 1.) Staggered booking of allowance for credit losses (ACL); and 2.)
Exclusion of eligible loans from past due and non-performing classification until December 31, 2021.

Pursuant to the BSF M-2020-08 dated March 14, 2020, the Bank with the approval of the BSP dated
April 28, 2021, availed the financial reporting relief for the staggered booking of its ACL computed
under Sec. 143 (Credit Classification and Provisioning) of the MORE, over a maximum period of five
years (2021-20235), for all types of credits extendead to individuals and business directly affected by
COWVID-19 pandemic amounting to 21,606, 307, covering 42 loan accounts as of December 31, 2020.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
il Pl pine Pesa)

However, based on the Bank's update, the approved ACL decreased to R923,013 as of December 31,
2021 with 12 loan accounts turning current. Hence, the adjusted balance of ACL for staggered booking
pertaing to the remaining 30 loan accounts,

Sat out below are the amounts by which each of the following financial staterment line items is affectad
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 as a result of the staggered booking of allowance for
credit logses for COVID-19. The table below shows whal the amounts would have bean had the
foregoing relief not been adopted as well as the amounts after considering impact of such relief

MEasLIne.
Loans and Provision
2021 Other Retained for (Benefit Deferred
Recaivables — Earnings from) Tax Assets
net Incarme TI_!
Balance at December 31,
2021* - 75118678 R 194741584 B 169,087 PR (260,884)
Adjustrents®:
ACL as approved by BSP
for staggered booking 1,431,704 1,431,704 286, 341 266,341
o COVID-18
Adjusted Balance** 2 TE,661,383 R 20,905,858 R 455428 B 25,457
"Without regulaliory relar

%wmw&maaﬂmmwmhm#mrmhrm#mmmwm siaggered baoking of ACL
“With reguiafary nelef

By applying the credit-related requiatory relief measures enumerated above, the Bank was given mone
leeway to manage the adverse impact of the COVID-18 on its financial position particularly on its loan
portfolio and it was able to extend financial reliefs to individuals and businesses affected by the COVID-
19 pandemic.

The amounts of the recognized (amorized) and the remaining (unamortized) BSP-approved ACL in
respanse to COVID-18 pandemic are as follows:

2021
Balance, January 1 R 923,013
Less:
Recognized during the year 184,603
Balance, December 31 R 738,410

Presentation and Functional Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the Philippine Peso, the
currency of the primary economic enviranment in which the Bank operates (the “functional currency”),
All infarmation presented in the functional currency has been rounded o the nearest Peso, except
when otherwise spacified,

The Bank chose to present its financial statements using its functional currency,

Use of Judgments and Estimates y

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements requires Management to make judgrments,
estimales and assumptions that affect the amounis reported in the Bank's financial stalements and

accompanying notes.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Philippine Peso)

Judgments are made by Management in the development, selection and disclosure of the Bank's
significant accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. These are based on
Management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Actual results
could differ from such estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the

revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Going Concern Assumption

The Bank is not aware of any significant uncertainties that may cast doubts upon the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED REPORTING STANDARDS

The Bank adopted all accounting standards and interpretations as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Bank has adopted the new and revised accounting standards starting January 1, 2021. Adoption
of these standards did not have any significant impact on the Bank's financial pasition or performance
uniess otherwise indicated.

These new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that have been published by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the FRSC in the Philippines, were
assessed to be applicable to the Bank's financial statements, are as follows:

New and Revised PFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

= Amendments to PFRS 9. PFRS 7. PFRS 4 and PFRS 16. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting
effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest
rate (RFR):

« practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform;

« relief from discontinuing hedging relationships; and

« relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component.

The Bank shall also disclose information about:

« the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments
subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and

« their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing that transition.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2021 and apply retrospectively, however, the Bank is not required to restate pnor
periods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{In Phil ppiine Pesa)

The amendments have no impact on the Bank's financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021

In the priar year, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to PFRS 16) provided practical
relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurmng as a direct consequence of COVID-
18, by introducing a practical expedient to PFRS 16. This practical expedient was available to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affected payments orginally due on or
bafore June 30, 2021.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (Amendment to PFRS 16) extend the
practical expedient to apply to reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June 30,
2022

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent
CONCEssion is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change
in lgase payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession applying PFRS 16 as if
the change was not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occwming as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

« fthe change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

« any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2022 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments
an of before Jure 30, 2022 and increased |lease payments that extend beyond June 30, 2022);
and

« there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Early
adoption is permitted.

This amendment in standard has no impact on the Bank’s financial statements as there are no rent
CONCESSIions.

MNew and Revised PFRSs in Issue but Not Yet Effective

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

= Amendments to PERS 3, Referance to the Conceptual Framawork

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the

and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framewark for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3,
Business Combinations lo avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2' gains or losses arising for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabiities and Confingent Assets or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Lewes, if incurred

separately.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020
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Al the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to darify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022 and apply prospectively.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PFRS 3 on its
financial reporting.

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, ie.
proceeds while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it io be capable
of operating in the manner intended by Management. Instead, an entity recognizes the
proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the eariest perod presented when the entity first applies
the amendment,

The amendments are not expected to have a materal impact on the Bank's current financial

The amendmenis specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022. The Bank will apply these amendmenits to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PAS 37 on its
financial reparting.

« Annual improvemants to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to
measure cumulative translation differences wsing the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate
or joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022, with earlier adoption permitied.




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
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The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank's current financial
reporting.

Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Insfrumenfs, Fees in the 10 per cent' tesf for
tion of il labit

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or the lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilies that are modified or exchange
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the enlity first applies the
amendrment.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, with
earlier adoption pemmitted. The Bank will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PFRS 9 on its
financial reporting.

Amendments o PAS 41, Agriculfure, Texation in fair value messurements

The amendment removes the requirement in PAS 41 for enfiies to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in PAS 41 with
the requirements of PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash
flows and discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-
tax cash flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value measurements on or after the
date an entity initially applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022, with earlier application permitted.

The amendments are not expected to hawve a material impact on the Bank curment financial
reparting.

The amendment to llustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
mighit arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or  after
January 1, 2022 with earlier application permitted.
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The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PFRS 16 on its
financial reporting.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023

The amendments change the requirements in PAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with
‘material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to Influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in PAS 1 are aiso amended to clarify that accounting policy
information that relates that immatenal transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial
and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be matenal because of the
nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are
immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material.

The amendments to PAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023, with earlier application permitted and are applied prospectively. The amendments to
PFRS Practice Statement 2 do not contain an effective date or transition requirements.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PFRS 1 and PFRS
Practice Statement 2 on its financial reporting.

Amendments to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors—
Definition of Accounting Estimates Deferred Effectivity

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the Board retained
the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:
e a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error;
« the effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the
correction of prior period errors.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PAS 8 on its
financial reporting.
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The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under
the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temparary differences may
arize on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that i not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon
recognition of a lease liability and the commesponding right-of-use asset applying PFRS 16 at
the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments o PAS 12, an entity is required to recognize the related deferred
tax asset and lability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in PAS 12,

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
an entity recognizes.

= A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and faxable temporary differences associated with:

*  Right-of-use assets and lease liabiliies
= Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabiliies and the cormesponding
amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related asset

« The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendmenis as an adjustment fo the
opening balance of retained eamings (or other component of egquity, as appropriate) at
that date

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023, with eardier application permitted.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopting the amendments to PAS 12 on its
financial reporting.

Effective beginming an or after January 1, 2024

Amendments o PAS 1. Classificaficn of Liabilities as Current or Non-curment
The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements,

to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as curment or non-current. The amendments
clarify:

+« what is meant by a right to defer settlernent of a liability;

« that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

= that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right; and

s that only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its dassification.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting perods beginning on or after January 1,
2024 and must be applied refrospectively.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank's current financial
reporting.

Effective baginning on or after January 1, 2025

PERS 17, Insurance Conlracls

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will
replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracis. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all
types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardiess
of the type of enlities that issue them. as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments
with discretionary paricipation features. A few scope exceplions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance confracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast fo the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The
core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplamented by:

+ a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach); and

+« a simplfied approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

The Bank is currently examining the impact of adopling the amendments to PFRS 17 on its
financial reporting.

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss
of control of a subsidiary that is sold or confributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
veniure invalves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
exitent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the FRSC deferred the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the
said amendments until the |1ASB completes its broader review of the research project on equity
accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other
aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank's current financial
repaorting.
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On February 14, 2018, the PIC issued PIC Q&A 2018-12 which guides on some PFRS 15
implementation issues affecting the real estate industry. On October 25, 2018, and February
08, 2014, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued SEC MC No. 14-
2018 and SEC MC No. 3-2019, respectively, providing relief to the real estate industry by
deferring the application of certain provisions of this PIC Q&A for three years until December
31, 2020. On December 15, 2020, the Philippine SEC issued SEC MC No. 34-2020 which
further extended the defemral of certain provisions of this PIC Q&A uniil December 31, 2023. A
summary of the PIC Q&A provisions covered by the SEC deferral and the related deferral
peniod follows:
Deferral Penod

Agzessing if the transaction price includes a significant inancing | Until December 31, 2023
component as discussed in PIC Q&A 2018-12-D (as amended

by PIC Q&A 2020-D4)

Treatment of land in the determination of the POC discussed in | Until December 31 , 2023
PICO&A 2018-12-E

The SEC Memorandum Circulars also provided the mandatory disclosure requirements should
an entity decide to avail of any relief. Disclosures should include:
a. the accounting policies applied;
b. discussion of the deferral of the subject implementation issues in the PIC D&A
c. Qualitative discussion of the impact on the financial statements had the concemed
application guidelines in the PIC Q&A been adopted; and
d. should any of the deferral options result in a change in accounting policy (e.g., when
an entity excludes land andior uninstalled materials in the POC calculation under the
previous standard but opled fo include such components under the relief provided by
the circular) such accounting change will have to be accounted for under PAS 8, i.e.,
retrospectively, together with the corresponding required quantitative disclosures,

In Movember 2020, the PIC issued the following Q&As which provide additional guidance on
the real estate industry issues covered by the above SEC deferrals:

= PIC O&A 2020-04, which provides additional guidance on determining whether the
transaction price includes a significant financing component.

« PIC Q&A 2020-02, which provides additional guidance on datermining which
uninstalled materials hould not be included in caleulating the POC.

After the deferral period, real estate companies have an accounting policy option of applying
gither the full retrospective approach or a modified retrospective approach as provided under
SEC MC 8-2021.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank’s current financial
reparting.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principal accounting and financial reporting policies applied by the Bank in the preparation of its
financial statements are enumerated below and are consistently applied 1o all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.
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Financial Instruments

The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial position
when it becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Einancial Assets
Initial Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given
or received. Except for those classified or designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), initial
measurement includes transaction costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition of financial
assels. Transaction costs of financial assets camied at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired and whether
the instruments are quoted in an active market. Management determings the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition and. where allowed and appropriate. re-evaluates such
designation at every reporing date.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interast.

Subs Measurement of Financial Asse

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Bank's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categones:

- Amortized cost;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
- Fair value throwgh profit or koss (FYPL).

Debt Instrurment

«  Amortized cost - Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whare
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amorntized
cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsegquently measured at amortized cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in statements of comprehensive income when the
assel is derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
interest income using the effective interest rate method.

Effective inferest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts including all fees on points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assels classified as at FVPL.
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The details of the above conditions are as follows:
The Sale Payment of Principal Interest (SPPI) Test

The Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether it meets the SPP
test,

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPP| assessment, the
Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial
assel is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is sel.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility
in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
confractual cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the amount
outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FWVPL.

Business model assessment

The Bank determines the business model at the level that best reflects how the Bank manages
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

Tha Bank's businass model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

« How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the Bank's key management personnel.

= The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

« How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

« The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of our
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenanos without taking “worst
case’ or ‘siress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in
a way that is different from owur original expectations, the Bank does not change the classification
of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates swch information
when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Bank's financial assets at amorized cost include debt instruments at amortized cost, cash
and cash eqguivalents and loans and other receivables as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

FVOC! - Debt instrumeants that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sale, and
where the assels” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are dassified
as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCIH) and
accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
imterest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in statements of
comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OC| iz reclassified from equity to statements of comprehensive income
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and presented in “Other gains and losses”, Interest income from these financial assets is
recognised using the effective interest rate method and presented in “Interest income™,

The Bank has no financial asset at FVOCH as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

« FVPL - Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet the criteria for
classification as amortized cost or FWVOCI are classified as FVPL. Movement in fair values and
interest income is recognised in statements of comprehensive income in the penocd in which it
arises and presented in "other gains and losses”.

The Bank has no financial asset at FVPL as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Bank reclassifies debt instrumeants when and only when its business model for managing those
assels changes.

Cash and cash equivalents
For purposes of cash flows reporiing and presentation, cash and cash equivalents include cash and

other cash items and amounts due from BSF and other banks and that are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents is valued at face value. If a bank holding the funds of the Bank s in
bankruptcy or financial difficulty, cash should be written down to estimated realizable value if the
amount recoverable is estimated to be lower than the face amount.

Due from Bangko Senfral ng Filipinas represents deposit of the Bank to the Bangko Sentral ng
Filipinas as part of its legal reserve requirement for monitoring of its deposit liabilities,

Due fram other banks represents deposits with other banks to maonitor and safeguards its funds. This
fund earned an interest at the prevailing market rate.

Loans and other recaiabies

Thesea financial assets are non-dervative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active markel. They are not entérad into with the intention of immediate or
shor-termn resale and are not designated as FVPL financial assets. Loans and other recaivables
are recognized when cash is advanced to the borrowers. These are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

After initial measurement, Loans and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses. Amartized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that
are an integral part of the effective interast rate. The amontization is included as 'Interast income’ in
the statements of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in

profit ar loss.

Unearmned discownt is amortized using fhe effective inferest method of amordization and any
unamartized loan discount is deducted from the outstanding balance to arrive at the amortized cost
of the account. Interest income on non-discounted loans is accrued manthly as eamed, except in
the case of non-accruing loans.

Loans are classified as non-accruing when the principal becomes past due, or when, in the opinion
of management, collection of interest and principal is already doubtful_ Interest income on these
loans is recognized only o the extent of actual collections. Loans are not classified as accruing until
imterest and principal payments are brought to current status or the loan is restructured in
accordance with existing BSP regulations and future collections appear assured.
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Credit losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Bank's loan portfolio, based on evaluation of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at loan's original effective interest rate or the last re-pricing
rate for loans issued at variable rates. It is established through an allowance account which is charged
to expense, Loans and discount are written off against the allowance for credit Iosses when
management believes that the collectability of the principal is unlikely, subject 1o BSP regulations.

Sales Contracl Receivable (SCR)

This refers to the amortized cost of assels acquired in settlement of loans through foreclosure or
dation in payment and subsegquenily sold on instalment basis whereby the fitle o the said properly is
transferred to the buyer upon full payment of the agreed selling price. This shall be recorded initially
at the present value of the instalment receivable discounted at the imputed rate of interest. Discount
shall be accreted over the life of the SCR by crediting interest income using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the present value of the SCR and the derecognized assets shall be
recognized in profit or loss at the date of sale in accordance with the provisions of applicable
standards.

Accrued Intarast Income
Refers to the amontized cost of interest in armears which are recognized periodically based on the
given terms of the loan. Credit loss is recognized when the comesponding loan bacomes impaired.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Bank expects o receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral fo the
contractual terms

ECLs are recognized in 2 stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irespactive of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL)

The provision matrix for loan and other receivables adopted by the Bank is based on the basic
guidelines in setting up of allowance for credit losses (ACL) parmitted by the BSP as set forth in the
Appendix 15 (Appendix to Sec.143, Credit Classificaion and Prowisioning) of the Manual of
Regulations of the Banks (MORB).
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The Bank reviews the quality of its loan portfolio and prepares a quantitative classification of its risks
assels including loans. Accordingly, loans and other credit exposures with unpaid principal andfor
imterest shall be classified and provided with ACL based on the number of days of missed payment as
follows:

1. Individually assessed loans and other credit exposures

F ns an r

MNo. of Days Unpaid/ with

Missed Payment Classification Minimum ACL Stage
31-90 days Substandard (underperforming) 10% 2
91-120 days Substandard (non-performing) 25% 3
121-180 days Doubiful 50% 3
181 days and over Loss 100%: 3

Mo. of Days Unpaid/ with

Missed Payment Classification Minimum ACL Stage
31-90 days® Substandard (underperforming) 10% 2
91-180 days™ Substandard (non-performing) 10% 3
181-365 days Substandard (non-parfanming) 25% 3
Owver a year- 5 years Doubtiul 50% 3
Ower 5 years Loss 100°% 3

“When there is imminent possibility of foreciosure and expectation of loss, ACL shall be increased
to 25%

Loans and other credit exposures that exhibit the characteristics for classified accounts described
under BESP MORE, Sec. 143 shall be provided with ACL as fallows:

Classification Minimum ACL Stage
Loans especially mentioned 5% 2
Substandard — secured 10% 2or3
Substandard — unsecured 25% 2ord
Doubtful 50% 3
Loss 100% 3

2. Collectively assessed loans and other credit exposures

For unsecurad loans and other credit exposunas:
Mo. of Days Unpaid/ with

Missed Payment* Classification
1-30 days Especially mentioned
31-60 days/

1# restructuring Substandard
61-90 days Draoulbiiful
91 days and owver/
2" restruck ring Loss
"PAR for microfinance loans
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Minimum ACL

No. of Days Unpaid/ with Other types Secured by
Missed Payment Classification of collateral real estate Stage
Substandard
Substandard (nan-
81-120 days performing) 25% 15% 3
121-360 days Dowbthul 50% 25% 3
361 days — 5 years Loss 100% 50% 3
Crwver 5 years Loss 100% 100% 3

The Bank recognizes a genaral loan loss provision equivalent to one percent (1% ) of all outstanding
stage 1 on-balance sheet loans, except for accounts considered as credit risk-free under the existing

BSP regulations.

These financial liabilities are not held for trading or not designated as at FWYIPL upon the inception of
the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations and bomowings. The Bank classifies all
its financial liabilities as subseqguently measurad at amortized cost, except unless otherwise stated.
These liabilities are classified as current lisbilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

Included in these other financial liabilities are the Bank’s deposit liabilities, bills payable, dividends
payable and other liabilities that maet the above definition, other than liabilities covered by other
PFRSs (such as income tax payable, provision, etc.).

Derecognition of financial iabilites

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the camying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the orginal
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank accounts for
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishmeant of the oniginal
financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantialby
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate is at least 10
per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carmying amount
of the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification
is recognised in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses

Equity Instruments

The Bank subsequently measures all its equity investments at their fair values. Equity investiments
are classified as FVPL with movements in their fair values recognized in statements of
comprehensive incomea in the pariod in which the changes arise and presented in “other gains and

Iosses”, except for those equity securities which are not hald for trading in which the Bank has elected
as FWVOCI as these are strategic investments and the Bank considers this to be more relevant.
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Movements in fair values of investments classified as FVOCI are presented as “fair value
gainsfosses in OCI, Dividends from equity investments are recognized in comprehensive income
statement as “dividend income”.

Offsafting Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presanted in the statemenis of financial
position when, and only when, the Bank has an enforceable legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settie the liability simultanecusly.
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities
are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Significant increase in credit nsk

In order to determine whether an instrument is subject to 12-month or Lifetime ECL, the Bank
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition.
The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by portfolio and
include classification of loans as set out in BSP MOREB Sec. 143: Guidelines on Sound Credit Risk
Management Practices. The credit risk of a parlicular exposure is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition if, based on the Bank's internal credit assessment, the borrower
or counterparty is determined o have well- defined credit weaknesses, that is, when the loan is
tagged as substandard, as a minimum, based on the rules as set out in BSP Circular 1011:
Guidelines on the Adoption of PFRS 9, These may include adverse trends or developments of
financial, managenal, economic or political nature, or a significant weakness in collateral. Credit
weakness may be manifested by unfavorable record or unsatisfactory charactenstics or may only
be potential that deserves Management's close attention and may lead to significant losses or may
result in collection or liquidation of the outstanding loan amaunt to be highly improbable. Exposures
with missed payment for more than thirty (30) days is also an indicator of SICR.

Cither financial assels af amaorfized cost

ECLs for other financial assets at amortiized cost are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the confractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk sinca initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a2 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected owver the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespectve of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Policies applicable for all financial assets at amortized cost:
a) Staging assessment
For non-credit-impaired financial assets:

- Stage 1 is comprised of credit exposures that are considered “performing” and with no SICR
since initial recogniticn or with low credit risk.

- Stage 2 is comprised of credit exposures that are considerad “under-parforming” or not yet
non-perfarming but with SICR since initial recognition.\
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For credit-impaired financial assets:

- Stage 3 is comprised of credit exposures with objective evidence of impairmeant, thus,
considered as “non-performing”.

b) Definition of “default” and “cura”

The Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of
credit impaired, in all cases when the borfower becomes 90 days past due on its confractual
payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Bank also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the
Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted. An
instrument is considered to be no longer in default (i.e. to hawve cured) when it no longer meets any
of the defaull criteria and has exhibited a salisfactory track record. The Bank shall transfer the
exposures from Stage 3 to Stage 1 when there is sufficient evidence to support their full collection.
As a general rule, full collection is probable when payments of interest and/or principal are received
for at least six (6) months.

Mon-performing restructured exposures that have exhibited improvement in creditwarthiness of the
counterparty may only be transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 1 after a total of one (1) year probation
period (i.e, six (6) months in Stage 3 before transferring to Stage 2, and another six months in Stage
2 before transferring 1o Stage 1; or directly from Stage 3 to Stage 1, without passing through Stage
2, after twelve (12) months). Restruciured accounts classified as “performing” prior 1o restructuring
shall be initially classified under Stage 2. The transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 will follow the six (6)-
manth rule.

The resulting allowances are presented against their related debl instruments in the statements of
fimancial position. Any adjustments related to such is recorded as “Provision for credit losses’ in the
statements of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of inancial assels

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues o control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fransferred financial asset, the
Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference betwean the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FWTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast. on derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument
which the [Company, Branch, Bank, or any appropriate alternative] has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss. but is transferred to retained eamings

‘Day 1’ Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions of the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markel the Bank recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a 'Day 1" profit) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where no observable data is used, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when
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the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Bank determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1° profit amount.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FWTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial labilities are recognized initially at fair valee and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial Liabilities at FWVTPL. Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated wpon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near termn,
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Bank that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by PFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabiliies held for trading are recognized in the statements of comprehensive
imcome. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss ane
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied.

The Bank has no any financial liability as at FYTPL.

Financial Liabiliies at Amortized Cost. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bormowings
are subsequently measured at amorfized cost wsing the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the labiliies are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortizaton process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
under “Finance costs” account in the statements of comprehensive income.

Classified under this category are trade and other payables, interest-bearing loans and bomowings,
obligations for program rights, converfible note and customers' deposits (included under “Cther
nancurrent liabilities” account).

Fair Value Measurement and Valuation Technigues

A number of the Bank's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for
measurement andfor disclosure purposes, when necessary, based on the market values, being the
estimated amount for which an asset could be exchanged on the date of the valuation after proper
marketing wherain the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
When applicable. further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
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The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method
have been defined as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices include within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
[unobservable inputs).

For all other financal instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
approprate valuation technigues. Valuation technigues include net present value technigques,
comparisan to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models
and other relevant valuation models.

Bills payable
This account represants funding received from Agricultural Credit Policy Council (ACPC) to finance
the need of marginalized farmers and fisherfolks.

D it liabilit
This account pertains fo amount of money deposited in the Bank for safekeeping and to eam a
certain percentage of interest.

Financial guarantee confracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments o

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails fo make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:
+ the amount of the obligation under the contract, a= determined in accordance with PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments; and
= the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of PFRS 15 Revenwe from Contracls with Cusfomers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in
cash flows between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments
that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as confributions and recognized as part of the cost
of the investrment.

Equity

The term ‘equity” shall be synonymous to unimpaired capital and surplus, combined capital accounts
and net worth and shall refer to the total of the unimpaired paid-in capital, surplus and undivided
profits.

Commeon and preferred stocks
Comman and preferred stocks are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.
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Surplus free
Surplus free is the accumulated eamings of the Bank during the current years and prior years that
are frea and not restricted for use by the Bank.

Revenue Recognition

Rewvenue is recognized to depict the transfer of promised services to customers in an amaunt that
reflects the consideration which the Bank expects to be enfitled to in exchange for those goods or
services. PFRS 15 prescribes a five-step model to be followed in the recognition of revenue, wherein
the Bank takes into consideration the performance obligations which it needs to perform in the
agreements the Bank has entered into with cur customers. Revenue is measured by allocating the
transaction price, which includes variable considerations, to each performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding value-added tax, or (WAT), where applicable. Transaction prices are based on third-
party pricing, arm's length pricing and cost-plus amrangement, as applicable. These are further
adjusted by inputting the related time value of money on contract assets with mone than one year of
amortization. When determining the Bank’s performance obligations, the Bank assesses ils revenue
afrangements against specific criteria to determine if the Bank is acting as principal or agent. The
Bank considers both the legal form and the substance of our agreement, to determine each party's
respective roles in the agreement. The Bank is acting as a principal whean it has control over the
respective services before the Bank renders those. When the Bank’s role in a transaction is that of
principal, revenue is presented on a gross basis, otherwise, revenue is presented on a net basis.

Revenuss within the af PFRS 15, Ravanue from Confracts with rs

Revenue from coniract with customers is recognized upon transfer of promised goods or services
to customiers at an amount that reflects thie consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Bank exercises judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the five-
step model to contracts with customers.

The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized for confracts
within the scope of PFRS 15:

Fees and commissions
Fees and commissions related to acquisition and origination of loan are amortized and recognized
using the effective interest rate method as income over the term of the loan.

Profit from Asset Soid
Profit from asset sold is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

+ the Bank has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset;
= the Bank retains neither continuing managerial invelvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the assets sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the ecomomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Bank:
and

= the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measurad reliably.

Profit from assets sold encompasses gain on disposal of real and other properties acquired and bank
premises, furniture, ficiures and equipment.

Other Income
Other income arise from miscellaneous income, and the likes. Other income s recognized upon
completion of the earning process and the collectability is reasonably assured.
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The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized for contracts
outside the scope of PFRS 15:

in r i

Interest income on loans and discount with advanced interest are recognized periodically using the
effective interest method of amontization. On the other hand, interest income on loans and discount
with no advanced interest are recognized on accrual basis. The accrual basis of recognition of
imterest income however ceases when the loans and discount account is already past due.

The Bank shall only charge interest based on the outstanding balance of a lcan at the beginning of
an interest pericd. For a loan where the principal is payable in instalments, interest per instalment
period shall be calculated based on the outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each
instalment period.

Interest Income on bank deposits, inancial assels at amonized cosf
Interest on bank deposits, held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized using the effective interest
methad.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Cost and expenseé ancompass losses as well as those axpensaes that arise in the coursa of the ardinany
activities of the Bank.

The Bank recognizes expenses in the statements of comprehensive income when a decrease in future
economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Revenues and expenses that relate to the same transaction or other event are
recognized when imcurmed.

Intergst Expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities are recognized in ‘Interest expense’ in the
statements of comprehensive income using the effective interest rate of the financial liabilities 1o
which they relate to.

Leases

« Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognizes rnght-of-use assets at the commeancemeant date of the leasa (e, the date the
underlying assel is available for use). Right-of-use assats ane measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease iabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabiliies recognized, initial direct costs incurmed,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless it is reasonably certain that the Bank oblains ownership of the leased asset al the end of the
lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are derecognized every month
subject to impairment.

= Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present

value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease paymenis include fixed payments

(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments y
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guaraniees. /

The lease payments also include the exercise price of @ purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects exercising the
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option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment accurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest
and reduced for the lease paymenis made. In addition, the camying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

+« Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank applies the short-term lease recognition exemption o owr shor-term leases (ie., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). The Bank also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered of low value, Lease payments on short-ferm leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease term,

« Significant judgment in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covensd by an option to exand the lease if it s reasonably cernain o be exercised, or any
perods covered by an option to terminate the kease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The Bank has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additonal terms of three to
five years. The Bank applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date. the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
{or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g.. a change in business strategy).

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from ioday's accounting under PAS
17, Lessors will continue fo classify all leases using the same classification principle as in FAS 17
and distinguish bebwesn two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The Bank as Lesses

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benafits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases in which the significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
ara classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received fram the lessor) are charged to operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive
incoma an a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When the Bank enters into an arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of related
transactions, that does not take the legal form of a lease but conveys a right to use an asset or is
depandent on the use of a specific asset or assets, the Bank assesses whether the armangement s,
or containg, a lease.

Employes Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Bank in exchange for services rendered
by employees. including directors and Management.
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Shori-terin Benefiis

The Bank recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered
by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Bank to its employees
include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-term compensaled absences, profit
sharing and bonuses, and non-monetary benefits,

Retirement Benefits

The: retirement abligations recognized are computed on the basis of the provisions of R.A, TE41, The
minimum retirement pay due to covered employees is equivalent to one-half month salary for every
year of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months being considered as one whale year.

"One-half month salary® includes all of the following:

a. 15 days salary based on the latest salary rate;

b. Cash equivalent of 5 days or service incentive leave (or vacation leave), and

c. One-twelfth of the 13th month pay (where the 13th month pay is the total basic salary for the last
twelve months of service divided by twelve).

Taxation

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the cumment perod are measured at the amount expected io be
remva-edﬁwnnrpaid fo the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are thase that are enacted or substantively enacted at the statements of financial position
date.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences betweean the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are ganerally recognized for all taxable termporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible tempaorary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax credits from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over Regular Corparate
Income Tax (RCIT) and unused Met Operating Loss Camy-over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
and carry forward of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax,
however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction that affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available o
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the
period in which the liability is setiled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd. The measurement of
deferrad tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Bank expecis, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile the camying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right o offset current
tax assels against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets and Nabilities on a net basis
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Frovisions

Prowvisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting pericd, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows esfimated to setile
the present cbligation. its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seftle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions ane reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

tA and Con Liabilities
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognized because their existence will be
confirmed only by the accurrence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the contrel of the Bank. Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an
outfiow of resources embodying economic benefils is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits iz probable.
Events After the End of the Reporting Peried

The Bank identifies events after the reporting date as events that occurmed after the reporting date
but before the date the financial staterments were authorized for issue. Any event that provides
additional information about the Bank's financial position at the reporting date is reflected in the
financial statements. Non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when material.

Prior Period Adjustments

The Bank comects material prior perod adjustments retrospectively in the first set of financial
statemants authorized for issue after their discovery by: (a) restating the comparative amounts for
the prior period presented in which the error occurred; or (b) if the ermor occurred before the earliest
prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assels, liabilites and equity for the eariest
prior period presented.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations that Management

has made in the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies and that have the mast
significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements,
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cai tminty i

When preparing financial statements, Management shall make an assessmeant of the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Bank shall prepare financial statements on a going concern basis
unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or o cease trading, of has no realistic
alternative but to do so. When management s aware, in making its assessment, of material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's ability o
continue as a going concem, the Bank shall disclose those uncertainties. \When the Bank doas not
prepare financial statements on a going concern basis, it shall disclose that fact, together with the basis
on which it prepared the financial statements and the reason why the Bank is not regarded as a going
COMCEN.

In assessing whether the going concemn assumpiion is appropriate, management takes into account
all available information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. The degree of consideration depends on the facts in each case. When the
Bank has a history of profitable operations and ready access to financial resources, the Bank may
reach a conclusion that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate without detailed analysis.
In other cases, management may need to consider a wide range of factors relating to current and
expected profitability, debt repayment schedules and potential sources of replacement financing before
it can satisty itself that the going concern basis is appropriate.

The Management shall evaluate whether relevant conditions and events, considersd in the aggregate,
indicate that it is probable that the Bank will be unable to meet its nhllguinns as they become dus
within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. The evaluation initially shall not
take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of management’s plans that have not been fully
implemented as of the date that the financial statements are issued.

When evaluating the Bank's ability to meet its obligations, the management shall consider quantitative
and gualitatrve imformation about the following conditions and evenis, among other relevant conditions
and events known and reasonably knowable at the date that the financial statements are issued:

« The Bank's current financial condition, including its liquidity sources at the date that the financial
statements are issued such as available liquid funds and available access to credit.

= The Bank's conditional and unconditional obligations due or anficipated within one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued.

s The funds necessary 1o maintain the Bank's operations considering its current financial condition,
obligations and other expected cash flows within one year after the that the financial statements
are issued.

The other conditions and avents, when considered in conjunction with the immediately preceding
paragraphs that may adversely affect the Bank's ability to meet its obligations within one year after the
date that the financial statements are ssued.

When relevant conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, initially indicate that it is probable
that the Bank will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due within one year after the date
that the financial statements are issued (and therefore they raise substantial doubt about the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern). management shall evaluate whether its plans that are intended
to mitigatle those conditions and events, when implemented, will alleviate substantial doubt about the
Bank's ability to continug as a going concem.

The mitigating effect of management's plans shall be considered in evaluating whether the substantial

doubt is alleviated only to the extent that information available, as of the date that the financial
staternents are issued, indicates both of the following:
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a) Itis probable that management’'s plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued.

b} Itis probable that management's plans, when implemented, will mitigate the relevant conditions or
evants that raise substantial doubt about the Bank's ability to continle as a going concearn within
one year after the date that the financial statemenis are issued.

The evaluation of whether it is probable that management's plans will be effectively implemented within
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued shall be based on the feasibility of
implementation of management's plans in light of the Bank's specific facts and circumstances.
Generally, to be considered probable of being effectively implemented, management (or others with
the appropriate authority) must have approved the plan before the date that the financial statements
are issued.

The mitigating effect of management’s plans that are not probable of being effectively implemented
within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued shall not be considerad in
evaluating whether substantial doubt about a Bank's ability to continue as a going concern is
alleviated.

Revenue and EnNse itian

The Bank's revenue and expense recognition policies require Management o make use of estimates
and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and expense. The Bank's revenue
and expense are recognized when eamed or incurred. except interest on loans receivables and other
receivables on past due accounts which are recognized when collection is actually made as provided
under existing BSF MOREB.

Classification of financial instrurmeants

The Bank exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument. or its component parts, on initial
recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definiions of a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form.
govems its classification in the statements of financial position.

In addition, the Bank classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is
qguoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted
in an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available,
and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis.

Eaic \ Y Ei al Inst

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilites recorded on the statements of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models was
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of ju

is required in establishing fair values. These estimates may include considerations of liquidity.
wvolatility, and comelation.

Classification of ieases
Beginning Januwary 1. 2019, the application of PFRS 16 resulied to capitalization of significant long-

termi leases. Management exercises judgment in determining whether it is reasonably certain that an
extension or termination option will be exercised. Management also exercises judgment in identifying
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the appropriate rate to discount the lease payments. Lease contracts which are short-term and has
low-value are considered as operating leases and rental payments are treated as expense.

Rent expense of the Bank for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to 211,700
and to 46 B00, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 28.

The Bank recognized right-of-use asset, net of accumulated depreciation, amounting o RS8 565 and
B321,428 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respactively, as disclosed in Nate 14; and lease liability
amounting to R103,162 and R327,999 az at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed
in Mote 21.

The Bank's interest expense on lease lability for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to B15,163 and B16,251 respectively, as disdlosed in Mote 26.

Classifying Financial Assels Measured af Amortized Cost

The Bank follows the guidance of PFRS 9 in classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturty as financial asset measured at amortized cost. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Bank considers its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. Management has confirmed its intention and
determined its ability to hold the investments up to maturity. If the Bank fails o keep these investments
at maturity (other than for the allowed specific circumstances, e.qg., selling mone than an insignificant
amount close o maturity), it will be required o reclassify. The investmenis would therefore be
measured at fair value and not at amortized cost through profit or loss or fair value through other
comprehensive iNcome.

Amortized cost of financial instruments

The determination of amortized cost on financial instruments includes estimating future payments or
receipts from such financial instruments. The Bank assesses annually whether new information
warrants revisions to such estimates which will require adjusting the carmying amounts of financial
instruments, except for reclassified financial assets, to reflect actual or revised estimates of cash
flows. The Bank recalculates the carrying amount by computing the present value of estimated future
cash flows at the financial instrument's original effective interest rate. The adjustrment is recognized
in the statements of comprehensive income as inCome or axpensea.

The Bank's financial assets at amortized cost as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted o
PET3,752 and P1,651,105, respectively, as disclosed in Note 11.

impairment of Financial Assels

The Bank follows the guidance of PFRS 9 in detemmining when an invesiment is pemmanently impaired.

This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Bank evaluates,

among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its

cost; and the financial health of and near —term business outlook for the investee, including factors

:u:‘:-l‘l as industry and sector performance, charges in technology and operational and financing cash
ow.

Income tax
Judgment is involved in determining the provision for income taxes, There are certain fransactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain durng the ordinary course of

business. The Bank recognizes liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes are due.
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Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognized, such differences will impact the profit and loss in the period in which such determination is
made,

Provisiens and Contingensias

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. The
Bank takes into consideration its present, legal or constructive obligations, if any in accordance with
its policies and management's assessment.

Eair \ fl P i

Fair values of investment properties are determined using valuation methodologies acceptable under
PFRS and valuation standards. Management determines the applicable valuation model based on
the related income generated from the asset.

Change in Use of Assels

FAS 40 requires Management fo use its judgment to determine whether a property qualifies as an
investment properties. The Bank has developed criteria 50 it can exercise its judgment consistently.
A property that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and which generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Bank is accounted for as investment
properties. On the other hand, a propery that is used for operations or in the process of providing
services or for administrative purposes and which do not directly generate cash flows as a stand-
alone asset are accounted for as bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Bank
assesses the accounting on an annual basis.

Post-employment Benefils

The Bank does not have an existing retirement plan. However, it is subject to the minimum retirement
benefit under the Republic Act (R.A) No. 7641, "The Refirement Pay Law”, which provides for
retirement pay to qualified employees in the absence of refirement plan.

R.A. 7641 requires that private employees should provide minimum retirement benefits o
employees who have reached age 60 with at least five (5) years of service with the Bank.

Management has recognized an accrual far retirement benefit cost as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 based on the requirements of R.A. 7841 as it believes that expected retirement is significant
based on employees’ average and years of service 1o the Bank. Refirement liability amounted to
B 623,064 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, as disclosed in Mote 20.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of nslinalju_m

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carmying amounts of assets and [iabilites within the next financial year.

Impaimment Losses an Loans and Receivable, Financial Assels al Amartized Cost

The Bank reviews its loans and receivable and financial assets at amortized cost portfolios o assess
impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the statements of comprehensive income, the Bank makes judgments as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the astimated future
cash flows from the portfolio. The evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, or national or
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local economic condifioned that comelate with defaults on assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
EXPETEncE.

The Bank carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires the extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgment. Significant components of fair value measurement wene determined using
verifiable objective evidence such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates. However,
the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Bank utilized different valuation methods and
assumptions. Any change in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect profit and
loss and equity. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Management believes that the allowance
provided by the Bank is sufficient to cover BSP requirements.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans and other receivables amounted to B76,.551.383 and
£65,470,000, respectively, net of allowance for credit losses, as disclosaed in Note 12, Financial
assets at amortized cost as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to PET3,752 and £1,651,105,
respactively, as disclosed in Mote 11,

Asset Impairment

The Bank performs an impaiment review when cerain impaiment indicators are present
Deterrnining the fair value of bank premises, fumiture, fixtures and egquipment, investmant properties,
right-of-use asset and intangible asset, which require the determination of future cash flows expected
to be generated from the continwed use and ulimate dispositon of such assets, requires the Bank
to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial stalements. Future events
could cause the Bank to conclude that bank premises, furniture, fixtures and eguipment, investment
properties and intangible asset associated with an acguired business is impaired. Any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of
operations. The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and
estimations. While the Bank believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values
and may lead to fulure additional impairment charges under generally accepted accounting
principles in the Philippines.

Based on Management's estimate, the Bank has not recorded any impairment losses for these
financial assets for both 2021 and 2020.

Estimation of Uzeful Lives of Azsel

The Bank estimates the useful lives of bank premises, fumiture, fidures and equipment, nght-of-use
assel. investment properties and intangible asset based on the period over which the assets are
expected to be available for use. The estimate useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, investment properties and intangible asset are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsclescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful
lives of bank premises, fumiture, fixtures and equipment, investment properties and intangible asset
is basad on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience
with similar assets. Itis possible, however, that future results operations could be materially affected
by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors and circumstances. A reduction in the
estimated useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, investment propertias and
intangible asset would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease non-current assets,
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The Bank has bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment stated at carrying value of P885,327
and RT54, 854 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed in Note 13, Intangible
asset, net of accumulated amorfization, amounted o P475.009 and F496,003 as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed in Note 15. Carrying amount of investment properties
amounted to B1,568,175 and RG661,675 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respactively, as
disclosed in Mote 16.

Detarmining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assef

The Bank reviews its deferred tax asset at the end of each reporting period and reduces the camying
amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assel to be ulilized.

The Management believes that it is highly probable they will generate taxable profit to allow all
deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Bank's deferred tax assets amounted to P25.457 and

P421,189, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed in Note 30.

Estimating Allowances for Credif Losses

The Bank reviews its lcans and receivables at each statements of financial position date to assess
whether an allowance for credit losses should be recorded in the statements of comprehensive
income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimate is based
on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the allowance.

In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the Bank also
makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifically
identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally
granted. This collective allowance is based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the loan or
imvestment since it was granted or acquired. These intemal ratings take into consideration factors
such as any detenoration in country risk, industry, and technological obsolescence, as well as
identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows.

The cammying value of loans and receivables and allowance for credit losses on loans and other
receivables are disclosed in Note 12,

Estima the incremeantal Bo Rate for Lease Liabiities

The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR for lease liabilities is the rate of interest that the Bank would have
to pay to bormow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
assel of a similar value to the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.

The carrying values of the Bank's right-of-use asset and lease liability are disclosed in Motes 14 and
21, respectively.

6. COVID-19 AND ITS IMPACT ON JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATE

The impact of the COVID-18 pandemic has changed the business environment and affected all
aspects of business operations. Judgements and estimates now need to take into account these new
changes. Management refocused their judgements and estimate relative to almaost every reparting
period and certain statements of comprehensive income accounts while considering the latest
accounting and audit guidance from numerous public and private boards and government agencies.
While not inclusive of every account that may be impacted, summarized below are some key areas
Management axamined as they evaluate their cument judgement and astimates:
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a) Revenue

Revenue estimates can be affected by many factors, but the changes in business environment
resulfing from COVID-19 can lead to changes in variable consideration included in ongoing
customer contracts, Accounting for revenue is covered in, "Revenue from Confracts with
Customers.” At the inception of the contract, it is management's responsibility to estimate the
value of variable consideration to which it will be entitled.

In 2021, the Bank's revenue increased by 20 82%% compared to the prior year. As the Bank
operates, the loan services have increased and is expected fo continue.

Al this stage, the impact on the business and results has significant and based on experience
to dale it is expected to remain the case or may even yield more positive results in the
succeading year. The Bank will continue to follow the varous government policies and advice
and, in parallel, will do its utmost to continue operations in the best and safest way possible
without jeopardising the health of its people.

b) Loans and Other Receivables

c)

The Bank has considered the financial condition of customers to help determine if lcans and
receivables will just take longer to collect compared o historical tremds or if specific reserves
andior general reserves are needed above and beyond typical reserve levels,

The Bank granted borrower credit terms ranges from 30 to 60 days. The balances of loans
and other receivables are within the credit terms given, thus represents currently maturing
callectibles from borrowers, However, due to the provision of the govermnment for relief through
the issuance of Republic Act No. 11494, aotherwise known as the “Bayanihan to Recover as
Ore Act” or Bayanihan 2 that provides concessions to various obligations, receivable may
take longer ta collect upon customer availment and negofiate any concession,

The Management assessed that realizability of receivables are probable without loss
contingencies and withoul the necessity to set allowance for probable loss.

The Bank eflectiveness in its credit and collection efforts in allowing credit to reputable
borrowers, as well as its ability to collect cash from them in a timely manner is at par.

Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment

During the period of the enhance community quarantine implemented by the government,
bank premises, furniture, fixiures and equipment might mean under-utilized or not utilized.
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment require that depreciation continues to be
charged in the statements of comprehensive income while an asset is temporarily idle. The
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, whether utilized or unutilized, is depreciated
on a regular basis over its estimated useful lives during the pericd.

In addition. it is crucial to assess long-lived assets to determine if the camying value is
recoverable. It is important to consider factors outside those historically relied upon when
making this judgment as changes in how these assets will be used in the future, relative to
the pandemic, may result in necessary adjustments to the depreciable lives of those assets.

During the year, the Bank assessed the necessity to test for impairment due to a triggering
event such as the change in business climate due o the pandemic and it has determined that
no allowance for impairment is necessary.
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d) Other Liabilities and Finance Lease

The Bank has assessed setilement of its other liabilities and finance leases with regard to
supplier negotiations for considerable payment terms in relation to the provision of the
government for relief through the issuance of Republic Act No. 11494, otherwise known as
the “Bayanihan to Recover as One Act” or Bayanihan 2 that provides concessions to vanous
obligations during the height of the pandemic and imposed restrictions. The Bank has
considered its financial condition 1o determine if the aforementioned obligations will take
longer to settle compared to historical trends in terms of expected cash flows. Despite of the
current situation, the Bank has managed an efficient and effective approach to supplier
payments that doesn't affect essential business needs as the Bank assessed that fulure
operations will remain and with favorable expectation.

As of the reporting period, the Bank assessed that cument obligations can be settled within
the nomal credit terms based on expected cash flows.

e) Going Concern

Management has considered the potential implications of COVID-18 and the measures taken
to contral it in assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concem. The Managament
neither intends to liquidate the bank nor to cease operations. Management has considered
the impact of measures taken by governments in its assessment of going concem,
Management has also considered any adjusting events after the reporting date that may
indicate that the Bank is no longer a going concerm. Although there are inconsiderable
uncertainties, however it does not cast significant doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as
a going concern in accordance with accordance with PAS 1. The Bank determined that the
financial statements is prepared on a going concern basis and; there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that cast significant doubt over the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concem.

f} Income Taxes

In response and recovery interventions to the coronavirus pandemic, the govermment
particularly the Bureau of Internal Revenue issued Revenue Regulations 25- 2020 which
provides that the net operating loss for the current year, if any, is to be camied over as
deduction from gross income the next (5) five consecutive taxable years immediately following
the current year as provided by the Rules and Regulations Implementing Section 4 (bbbb) of
Republic Act No. 11494, otherwise known as the “Bayanihan o Recover as One Act” or
Bayanihan 2 relative to MNet Operating Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO) under section 34 (D)(3) of
the MIRC, as amended,

g) Employee benefits

Management have considered whether any of the assumplions used 1o MEBasure amployes
benefits should be revised. Also, Management have considered whether it has a legal or
constructive obligation to its employees in connection with the virus, for example sick pay or
payments to employees that self-isolate, for which a liability should be recognized.

Management might be considering reducing its work-force as a result of the virus. PAS 19

Employee benefits requires that a liability for employee termination is recognized only when

the Bank can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or the costs of a related g
restructuring are recognized in accordance with PAS 37. PAS 19 requires extensive //
disclosure of the assumptions used to esfimate employee benefit liabilities, logether with

sensitivities and change in those assumptions.
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In 2021, the Bank did not recognize any termination benefits since the outbreak,
Events after the Reporting Date

The Bank identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but before
the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue. Any subsequent evenis that

additional information about the Bank's position at the reparting date, adjusting events, ane
reflected in the financial statements, while subsequent events that do not require adjustments, non-
adjusting events, are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Prior Period Errors

The Bank comrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements
authorized for issue after their discovery by: (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior
period presented in which the ermor occurred; or (b) if the emor occurred before the earliest prior
period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior
period presented.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

General Risk Management Principles

The Bank's financial instruments comprise cash, financial assels at amortized cost, loans and other
receivables, other assets, and other financial liabilities such as savings deposits, bills payable and
accrued expenses to finance the Bank's operations.

The following table summarizes the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded by
category:

2021 2020
Financial assets
Cash and other cash items P 44408945 B 4,053,719
Due fram Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 5,645,750 5,726,328
Due from ather banks 87,526,876 88,909, 706
Financial assets at amortized cost 673,752 1.651,105
Loans and other receivables - net 76,551,383 65,470,000
Other assels® 5,000 42 206
P 174,843,706 B 165,853,063
Financial liabilities
Depasit liabilities B 126,982,196 & 114,110,248
Bills payable 4,905,328 9,998,850
Lease liability 1,623,064 327,999
Accrued interest payable 43,304 17,531
Other liabilities** 161,407 101,678
P 133,715,388 P 124,558,006

“Excluding non-financil 8338l amouniing o B414.7 16 and A370, 149 a2 of Dacember 31, 2021 and 2020, respectivaly.
*“Exciuding mon-financial labiites amounting to & 877, 745 and & 223,484 as of December 31, 3021 and 2020, respectively
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I::m:lrl r'lah refem ln tnue risk Ihm a munlerparty wlll uefault m m nmtmntua mhgaunm resulting in
financial loss to the Bank. The Bank has adopted a policy of only dealing with credibworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as @ means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. The Bank only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent
of imsestment grade and above. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the Bank uses ather publicly available financial information and its
own trading records to rate iis major customers. The Bank’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is
spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that
are reviewed and approved by the risk management commitiee annually.

The Bank enforces credit risk management fundamentally via its Credit Policy Manual (CPM), the
provisions of which are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect changing risk conditions.

The CPM defined. among others, the following:

a. the Bank's credit struciure;

b. target market;

¢. credit evaluation, administration, manitoring. and collection guidelines; and
d. remedial management.

The Bank likewise manages rigk by setting imits such as:
a. approving authority lmits;

b. individuals and borrower growp imits; and

c. concentration limits as to facility and industry segments.

Moreover, the Bank monitors credit exposures, and continually assesses the credibworthiness of
counterparties. It also obtains security where appropriate, enters into collateral arrangement with
counterparies and financial decision making.

The Bank has an internal credit risk rating system for the purpose of measuring, in a consistent
manner, credit risk for every exposure. The risk information derived is then used for business and
fimancial decision making.

Meximum Exposure fo Credif Risk before Colateral Held or Other Credit Enhancements
An analysis of the maximum exposure to credit risk relating to on-balance sheet assets without taking
into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements is shown below:

2024 2020
Financlal assets

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Filipinas B 5645750 B 5 T26,328
Due from ather banks BT, 526,876 88,909,706
Financial assets at amortized cost 673,762 1,651,105
Loans and other receivables® 95 666,104 B4 460 425
Cther assets™ 5,000 42 205

P 169,617,482 P 180,798, 769

“Grazs of aliowance for credit losses and unama—nired discount amounting fo 219,114 721 -'rdil'-ﬂmdﬂu of December 31,

2021 and 2020, respactivedy.
**Exciuding nan-financial sssels amounting to B414.715 and FITD, 140 35 of Decembar 31, 3021 and 2020, respechivedy.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the amounts represent the current credit risk
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the fulure as a result of changes in
values.
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Concenfrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
acfivities in the same geographic regien, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other condiions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank's performance fo
developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location,

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dacambe 31, 2021 and 2020
[ Prillppirs Fees|

Crnclt Quakly of Financil Assals

Thi tible bisiow shows Fie credit quakty by dass of financial assets s of Decermber 31, 2021 and 2020,

Meithar pasi dus Pasl diss buit Pl diss and Toti
niaf impaired nil impaired IFripaifad

21
D lram Bangho Seniral ng Piipinas F SEETH P = P - P §,E45,T50
Do fram o Baria BT B26 AT ' . BT 626 ATH
Firantial adssls al amodized cosl LIENE - = 73,752
Leans and offar recaivabies' i BE6,037 B bR A2 4 b6 8,60 104
(thar assals™ 5,000 s s 5,000
P 154407415 P WA P 44158 P 189,517 482

2020
Dua rom Bangko Santia ng Pilpnas P 5738 P - F - F 5,726,328
Dhue friam vl B B8 00, 70 : . 8,508,706
Firancial adsels al amorined cosl 1851105 - - 1,651,105
Lesans and offar recoivabies® B3 074 00 30,182 124 442 401 B4 i 426
Olher assals™ 42308 - - 42,308
P 150204244 P WIRIMH P 442400 P 180,798,780

"orman o afoumece fov SRS (BEner B naTErTEd n-:uinuq i 03 4,121 a0 0428 of mcumsar 31, 2% 2430 T
“Exglydeyg rvhingiei Bsels praseting 15 Band I asd BIN pad 39 0f Devermder 31, 2031 o M csssentivaly
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The credit guality of the financial assets was determined as follows:
i. Meither past due nor impaired
(&) Loans and raceivables

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and receivables can be assessed by reference to the
historical experience of the Bank with the borrower. All loans and receivables neither past due nor
impaired are considered high grade and can withstand weak economic conditions. These are
borrowers with strong repayment capacity, have excellent hquidity and low leverage. Mostly, these
are the accounts with updated amortization payments.

The credit risk grading for loans and other receivables shall be applicable for both new and existing
bormowers.

(b} Financisl assels at amortized cost

The Bank invest in fixed rate treasury bills and retgil treasury bonds which are fully guarantead by
the Philippine governmeant.

fg) Due fram BSP and other banks

The Bank has various deposits with other banks and financial institutions. Cash transactions are
limited to financial institutions with credit standing. The Bank has policies that limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution. The Bank's existing deposit arrangements are with
universal and commercial banks, which are considered top tier banks in terms of capitalization as
categorized by the BSP. Overall credit risk, if any, is not assessed to be significant.

ii. Past due but not impaired

Late processing and other administrative delays can lead to a financial asset to become past due.
Therefore, loans and other receivables up to 180 days are not usually considered impaired, unless
other information is available to indicate the contrary.

iii. Impaired

Impaired loans and receivables and investment securities are loans and receivables and investment

securities for which the Bank determines that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal
and interest due based on the contractual terms of the promissory notes and securities agreements,

Aging Analysis
An aging analysis of the Bank's loans receivable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Outstanding receivables:
Current accounis P 66,824,312 F 53,874,900
Past due accounts:
31-90 days past dus 5311161 9,489 987
91-180 days past due 2,021,587 5,886,362
over 180 days past due 21,509,044 15,218,176
P 95,666,104 84,460,425
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Liquidity Risk

Litimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directars, which has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Bank's
short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The Bank manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilites and reserve borrowing facilities, by

continuously maon
financial assets and liabilities.

forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of

The Bank seeks o manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its capital expenditures and
cover its operating costs. The Bank's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through valuation of projected and actual cash flow information.

The table below summarnzes maturity profile of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 based on undiscounted contractual cash flows.

Due Beyond
Dhue Within 1 1 Year but Due d
2021 On Demand Yoar Mot Mors . E‘““I i Total
_ than 5 Years

Financial Assets:
Cash and othar cash kams 4,440,945 - = = 4,440,945
Due from Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas 5,645,750 - = - 5,645,750
Dioe fromn otfver banks BT 526 BTE - - = 87,528, B76
Financial assets at amortized
cash - 673,762 = = B73,TE2
Loans and ofher recelvables” 8, 750,530 6,867 46T 60,491,943 18,556,164 95 666,104
Other assets™ 5,000 _ _- _ - - 5,000

107,369,101 7541219 60,491,943 18,556,964 193958

“Financial Liabilities:

Diepoait kabdiies 126 982 196 - - - 126,982 106
Bills payable - 4,905,328 - - 4,905.328
Finance lzase liability . 103,162 - - 103,162
Accrued interest payable 43,394 - - - 43,354
Other labdties™" 161,407 . - - 161,407

127 186,997 4,905,328 - - 132,195,487

‘Gross af alowance for credll lostes and unamantired dscouwnl amounting Jo 278, 114, T21 and B18 9238 425 as of December 37, 2027

and 2020, respectivaiy.

“*Exciuding non-financial astals amounating fo 2414716 and BIT0, 149 as of Decamber 37, 2027 and 2030, respeciival.

***Erciuding nan-financial labdilies amounting éo BEFT, F48 and R323 484 as of December 31, 2027 and 2020, respechivedly.




{In Philipgine Peso)

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Due Beyond 1
Ciue Within 1 Year but Not Due Beyand
2020 On Demand Vear Mare than 5 5 years Total
Years

Financial Assels:
Cash and other cash kems 4,083,719 - - 4053719
Dwe from Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas 5,728 328 - - 5726328
Drue from other banks 88,009, 708 - - 83,000,708
Fimanciad assets al amonized
cost 1,651,105 - - 1.651,105
Loans and ofer receivables” 8,431,994 18,055,942 42 064,910 15,916,579 84 460 425
Dther assels™ 5.000 37.205 - - 42 205

107,126,747 19,744 252 42 064 910 15,916,579 184 B52 488
Financial Liabilities:
Depasit kabdidies 114,110,848 - - - 114,110,948
Bills payable 59,999 850 - . 5,959 850
Finance lease liability - 224 871 103,128 - 327 o0
Accrued interest payable 17.53 - - - 17,531
Other labdties™™™ 101,678 - - - 101,678

114,230,157 10,234 721 103,128 - 124 558 008

“Grass of allowance for credit losses and unamanimed discount amounting fo £15,114, 721 and 18 999 425 as of December 31, 2021

and 2020, respeciiveiy.
“*Exciuding man-financial assels amawnhing fo 2414 716 and B370, 149 as of December 31, 2027 and 2020, respectively
" Exciuoing non-financal labiiles amounting bo 8677, 745 ang R223 484 as of Decambar 31. 2027 and 2020, respecinvely’.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Bank's income or the value of its haldings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is o manage and control market rsk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.

Interest Rate Risk

Intereslt rate risk is the risk to the earning or capital resulting from adverse movemenis in the interest
rates. The Bank closely monitors the movemenis of interest rates in the market and reviews its
asset and liability structure to ensure that exposures to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within

acceptable limits. The Bank's exposures fo interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is not readily estimable as interest is unpredictabile.

The Bank follows a prudent policy on managing ifs assets and liabilities so as to ensure that
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. The Bank i exposed to
interest rate risk since its financial assets and financial liabilittes have fixed and variable rates_

. . Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arsing from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank's involvement with financial instruments, including processes,. personnel, lechnology
and infrastructure, and from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards
of corporate behaviour.
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The Bank's objective is fo manage operational risk 5o as to balance the aveidance of financial
losses and damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict infiative and creativity.

Compliance with Bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are submitted to the Board of Directors. The
BOD will call a meeting together with the Compliance Officer, Internal Control Head and Senior
Management 1o resolve the issue.

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYDG CITY, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Descomiber 31, 2021 and 2020
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f. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table presents a comparison by calegory of carrying amounts and estimae fair valse of fo Bark's financial mstruments as of December 31,
2021 and 200

Far Valun

Wm Significant Significant
ooyl Carrying Value Prices in Astive ﬁhl;-ﬂﬂrﬂ m Tedal

Markets [Level 1]
Fiitancial aaets &l amanined cosl fof which
it vaiue in disclosed:
Cash and other cash itams 4,440,944 . 4,440,945 . 4,440,048
Dus from Bangko Santral ng Pilipinas 5845780 . 545,780 . 5,845,750
Dus from othar barks 87,518, 478 ET. 516 ETE - - 87,526,876
Financial axeets at amontized cost TR . 671782 : 673,782
Loans and ofher receivahles — net 76881383 . - T™,381,303 76,491,383
Oothar akits® 5,000 5000 . . 5,000
174.843,706 ELENATE 16,760,447 76,661,383 174,843,706
Financial Mabilities ot amortized cost for
bk falr vilie B 0 okbd:
Dot lakilties 126,942, 104 126,883 138 - . 128,982,198
Bills payabe 4,903,324 . 4908328 - 4,908,328
Finance lemse ksbility 103,162 . - 103,162 103,162
Accrued inferest pryable 43,304 .

Oahar |1 it 14 407 -
et DI 136853 19




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 3120

Cuotad {Linadjsiad) Signifcant
20 Carrying Valus Prices in Acthve Dbssrvabla Inputs Ursitrsaran bk Toka
arinty. Lewel 1) Inputs (Lewel 3)

Firamoial assets af amorteed cost for which far

walud & s oo
Cash and olher cash ilems 4,053,719 4,053,710 4053 T8
Dhia i Banghe Sanial ng Plipinas & 726328 & 726,328 5 T35
D froim pihiar banks BB, 509, TDE B3 9040, 706 BA, D0 TOE
Fiareial anssis &l amorized sl 1,651,105 1,651,905 . 1,651 108
Luaica. @nd oifuar e ervables — nel 65,470,000 B 5,470,000 55 470,000
Difar assois” 42208 Bu000 7206 2 0k

1158, DA, 06 100 345,858 135, 807 168

Firamcial labdiies al amoniaed cost for which

Far wahm in dnciomsd
Deposit iabiites 114,170 848 174,110,048 114,110 848
il payabiz 5,099,850 - - 0,000 B0
Firance lame babiity 1T.000 - 17000 Eril
Acorued risrest payvabls 1180 - 17.80 1T.EM
‘ther laiihos™ 0. ETH - 1AETH 10168

124 558,006 114110848 447208 12 SRR 00

“Entiuing non-Hnin s A dmowsing o Bt P18 end BIT0 140 s of Decemtes TT, 2007 aod M50 oy
= Excfusiag 0 oe-fire ol bt Smcuting i BEFT, P8 and BI2T A8 b of Decammber 11, 2027 e 00 rdmhstivly.

The far values of inandal assets and financial | abilites mesrsuned 27 amon 2ed cosl approdimates Ther camying values either because these instruments ane

shor-ienm in nalure o the efiect of dscounting for those with maburilies of mone fhan one year i immaderial,
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8. CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS

Thie account consists of cash on hand and cash in vault amounting to P4, 440 845 and B4,053,719
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash on hand and in vault consist primarily of
funds in the form of Philippine currency noles and coins in the Bank's vault and those in the
possession of tellers,

10. DUE FROM BANGKO SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS (BSP) AND OTHER BANKS

The “Due from BSP" account represents the aggregate balance of non-interest bearing peso
deposit accounts with BSP which the Bank maintains primarily to meet reserve requirements and
1o serve as a clearing account for interbank claims.

Due from other banks represent funds deposited with domestic banks which are used by the Bank
as part of its working funds. Due from other banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.
Deposits eam interest for savings deposits are 0.18% and 0.36% as of December 31, 2021 and

Due from BSP and other banks consist of:

2021 2020
Due from BSP R 5645750 R 5,726,328
Due from ofher banks 87,526,876 88,900,706
B 93,172,626 R 04,636,034

Interest earmned on due from other banks for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amournted to P165,.583 and B246. 475, respeclively, as disclosed in Note 25.

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

This account consists of investments in bond and bills issued by Land Bank of the Philippines
amounting to B673,752 and £1,651,105 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Under current bank regulations, investments in bonds and other debt instruments shall not exceed
50% of adjusted statutory net warth. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank is within the
prescribed limit.

Interest earmed from these investments amounted o 212,153 and RE5 648 for 2021 and 2020,

raspectivaly, with interest rates ranging from 29 to 4% and 2% to 8% in 2021 and 2020, respectively
as disclosed in Note 25.
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12. LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES = NET

The account consists of the fallowing:

2021 2020
Loans receivables:
Agricultural and agrarian loans B 15928796 R 6,268 692
Salary loans 6,004,864 5. 218 958
Other loans 70,360,204 68,707 431
p 92,291,864 R 80,216,081
Less:
Unamortized discount — Loans 1,338,115 616,505
Allowance for cradit losses — Loans 17,776,606 17,487 257
Met loans receivables B 73177143 B 2112229
Other receivables:
Sales contract receivable p 3374240 R 4,253 344
Less:
Unamortized discount - SCR - 805,573
Met other receivable p 3374240 PR 3,357,771
B 76551383 R 65470 000

The Bank’s loan accounts are stated at the outstanding balance, reduced by estimated allowance
for credit losses and uneamed interest and discounts,

Total interest income earned on loans amounted to B10,661,435 and P8495 996 for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, at interest rales ranging from 8% to 30% for
years 2021 and 2020 as disclosed in Note 25.

Sales confract receivable (SCR) refers to the amortized cost of assets acquired in settlement of
loans through foreclosure or dation in payment and subsequently sold on instaliment basis whereby
the title to the said property is transferred to the buyers only upon full payment of the agreed selling
price. Unamortized discounts amounted to nil and B85 573 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and no
allowance for credit los2es on SCR was recognized as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

The Bank earned interest income on SCR al an average interest rate of 8% per annum amounted
to P483,455 and B563.082 in 2021 and 2020, respeciively.
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The breakdown of the Bank's loans and other receivables as to status and per product line as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are shown below:

20 2020
Mon- Mon-
Perlormi Tatal Perlorm Tatal
" pertorming M perorming
Agricuftural and
agrarian loans 9823836 6102080 1592679 699048 4520000 5218057
Salary loans 2720198 3275666 6,004,864 1875063  B,104904 10,070,957
Cither loans 55415 529 1 ETS 7O 204 56 721,323 8204 844 B4 936 167
67,068,563 24323301 92201864 50287234 20928847  B0.216,081
Sales contract
receivable 3,374,240 - 3374240 4,253 344 - 4,253,344
71,342803 24323301 95666104 63540578 20978847 B4 469425
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Descarnbser 31, 2021 and 2020
Iin Philppne Peso)
Movemants during 2021 and 2020 for loans from borrowers follows:
2021 I.lr 1 nhrh I.lr 3 Total
Agricultural and agrarian loans
Balance at January 1, 2021 B 1221477 R BG4 485 R 4413730 B 6280602
Mew assets originated or purchased 8,350,000 - . 8,350,000
Assels derecoanized or repaid FZ3.TT) (224,887 (44T 953) 1,398 42T)
Amounts written off - - - -
Transfers tolifrom) Stage 1 (20,87T0) 20,870 -
Transfers toi{from) Stage 2 TE.438 (281.329) 214.881
Transfers tolifrom) Stage 3 328.128 255977 1584, 105) -
Others (407.568) [1256.889) 2.216.986 1.683.531
Balance at Decembar 31, 2021 B,823.836 B 2BRAT B 5813543 P 15,926,796
Other loans
Balance at January 1. 2021 45815841 R 14686746 R BB04 44 R 68,707 43
Now inated or 34 870,000 60,000 - 34,930,000
Assels derecognizsd or repaid (30,004 494 ) (2. 948,721) 11.781,296 (30,169,920)
Amounts written off - - - -
Transfers to/ifrom) Stage 1 (4,402 64T) B,574 4,304 073
Transfers tolfffrom) Stage 2 3421302 {4,597 TE3) 1.176.461
Transfers to/ifrom) Stage 3 1,008,755 431,812 (2430 856T) -
Others 18030006 (6.791.208) 1.753. 085 (3107 307T)
Balance at Decomber 31, 2021 B 44 628TE3 B 851450 B 246TE0N1 R 70,360,204
Salary loa
Iﬂ-n::l.l-uiy 1, 2021 B 600145 R BoB PR 45200080 R 5218.958
Neow S — g 2,005 850 - (1245 850) 1,680,000 y
Azsels derecognized or repaid (950_838) {104,811} (181 _838) {1.237 0&T) Y
Amounts written off . - - -
Translars tojfrom] Staga 1 (53.4T4) S14T4 /
Transfers toi{from) Stage 2 11,608 (38.468) 26,860
Transfers to/ifrom) Stage 3 15T 863 22 800 (180.663) -
DOthers _ _ 38.035 53274 251684 3429063
Balance at December 31, 2021 1,729,198 76,273 3.199.393 6004 864
[ 5T.181,7897 B 117440 B ILE28IT B 832,291 884
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2020 Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Total
Agricultural and agranian lbans
Balance at January 1. 2020 A 2374 R shz4my R 1604176 R 4477024
New assets ongnaled of purchaged 1,850,000 . . 1,850,000
Asspla derecognizad of repald {1,660 568) {(318.275) {2,187 B43)
Amounts writien off - - - -
Transfers to/{rom) Stage 1 (1.120.433) 241841 8a7 582 -
Transfers lo/{from) Slage 2 . (502,834) 502834
Transfers ln/from) Stage 3 - - - -
Oihers - 412,008 1,737,403 2,150,411
Balance at December 31, 2020 | 131477 R GE4485 R 4413730 B 6,289,602
Other loans
Balanca at January 1, 2020 & 24585 R (3,215,388) R BS5030 B 47 54847
Menw assets orignated or purchased 29 080,000 - - - 28,080,000
Assels derecognized of rapaid (17,846, 787) - B12.792) (18,659.579)
Amounts writlan off . - . .
Trarafers lo/i{fom) Stage 1 (7.662,657) 6303977 - 1,358,680 -
Transters to/irom) Stage 2 - (2,067538) - 2067539 -
Trarshors af{kom) Stage 3 - 1902325 - (1.902.225) -
Dihers . 11,763 451 = {1.051,388) 10,712,063
Balance at December 31, 2020 g 45815841 R 14686748 £ 8204844 B 8,707 431
Salary loars
1Balance al January 1. 2020 a 3190442 R 39E0215 & 0230042 R 16,420,509
MNew assats ofignated or purchased 885,000 - . 895,000
Assels derecognized o repaid (2,126,423) (570,883) (2,647 ,306)
Amounts writhen off - - -
Transfers lofifom) Stage 1 (1.358,874) 341833 1,017,041
Tranafers toiirom) Stage 2 - (2,667,74T) 2,607,747
Transfers to/from) Stage 3 - - - -
Dihers - (1,544 247} (7.854.838) (8.399.335)
Balance at December 31, 2020 A 600145 B BOBM R 4520008 @A 5,218,858
g ATHITABY R 15431 E 17147583 P 80,218,081




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(In Phiippine Peso)

BSP Reporting

The movements in the allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are
summarized as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year R 17,487,257 E 17,487,257
Provision for credit loss 184,603 -
Adjustrent 104,746 -
Balance at end of year g 17,776,606 R 17,487,257

Classification of allowance for credit losses for loans receivable follows:

2021 2020
Specific B 17,085,006 E 16,795,657
General 691,600 691,600
R 17,776,606 e 17,487,257

The BSP observes certain criteria and guidelines based largely on the classification of loans in
establishing specific loss reserves.

In compliance with the regulations of the BSP, the Bank strictly adheres to the setfing up of
allowance for credit losses.

The Bank recognizes a general loan loss provision equivalent to one percent (19%) of all outstanding
stage 1 on-balance sheet loans, except for accounts considered as credit risk-free under existing
regulations.

The BSP mandated the BSFis to adopt the ECL model in measuring credit impairment, in
accordance with the provisions of PFRS 9. The B5Fls shall recognize credit impairment/ allowance
for credit losses even before an objective evidence of impairment becomes apparent. BSFls shall
consider past events, current conditions, and forecasts of fulure economic conditions in assessing
impairment.

However, BSFIs with simple operations are encouraged to adopt a simple loan loss methodologies
fundamentally anchored on the principle of recognizing ECL. In this respect, BSFis shall look
beyond the past due/ missed amortizations in classifying exposures and in providing allowance for
credit losses. On the other hand, BSFls with credit operations that may not economically justify
adoption of said simple loan loss estimation methodology that is compliant with PFRS 9 shall, at a
minimum, be subject to the regulatory guidelines in setting up allowance for credit losses prescribed
under the Appendix 15 of the MORB.

The Bank adopted the said simple loan loss computation in computing allowance for credit losses.
The provision matrix for loans and other receivables adopted by the Bank is disclosed in Note 4.
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The breakdown of loans receivables from borrowers as fo the following:

a) Secured and unsecurad

2021 % 2020 %
Secured B 64, TE2,617 70.19% R 56,896,617 70.83%
Unsecured 27,509,247 29.81% 23,318,464 29.07%
P 92,291,864 100.00% B 80,216,081 100.00%
b) As to type of security
2021 % 2020 %
Loans secured by
Chattel Mortgage B 1 0.00% & 7,000,001 8.73%
Other Collateral 1,500,000 1.63% 4 852,140 6.05%
REM — Residential 40,729,583 44.13% 24 128,847 30.08%
REM - Commerdial 4,570,397 4.95% 8429102 10.51%
REM — Agricultural 17,982,636 19.48% 12 486,427 15.56%
Secured B 64,782,617 T0.19% B 56,896,617 70.93%
Unsecured 27,509,247 29.81% 23,319,454 29.07%
B 92,291 864 100.00% & 80,216,081 100.00%

Past Due Loans

Past due loans of the Bank shall, as a general rule, refer to all accounts in its loan portfolio, all
receivable components of trading account securities and other receivables, which are not paid at
miaturity.

BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks Sec. 304 defined the classification of past due loans as follows:

As a general rule, loans, investments, receivables, or any financdal asset, including restructured loans,
shall be considered past due when any principal and/or interest or instaiment due, or portions thereof,
are not paid at their contractual date, in which case, the total outstanding balance thereof shall be
considerad past due.

Instalment refers to principal and/or interest amortizations that are due on several dates as indicated
in the loan documents. The allowance for credit losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Bank's
Ilpan portfolio, based on evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior l0ss experience,

Any amounis set aside in respect of losses on loans and advances in addition to those losses that
have been specifically identified or potential losses which experience indicates to be present in the
portfolio of loans and advances are accounted for as approprations from retained eamings. Any
credits resulting from the reduction of such amounts result in an increase in retained eamings and
are not included in the determination of net profit or loss for the period.

The allowance is increased by provisions charged to expenses and reduced by write-offs and
reversals.
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Mon-Performing Loans

BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks, Sec. 304, defined non-performing loans (NPLs) as follows:

Loans, investments, receivables or any financial asset shall be considered non-performing, even
without missed contractual payments, when it is considered impaired under existing accounting
standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in litigation, andfor there is evidence that full repayment of
principal and interest is unlikely without foreclosure of collateral. All other loans, even if not considered
impaired, shall be considered non-performing if any principal andfor interest are unpaid for more than
90 days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more than 90 days have been capitalized,
refinanced, or delayed by agreement,

Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characteristics shall be considered non-
performing after contractual due date or after it has become past due.

Restruciured loans shall be considered as non-performing; however, if prior to restructuring, the loans
were categorized as performing, such classification shall be retained.

Mon-performing loans investments, receivables, or any financial asset (andfor any replacement loan)
shall remain classified as such until (a) there is sufficient evidence to support that full collection of
principal and interests are probable and payments of interests and/or principal are received for at
least six (6) months; or (b) written-off.

Breakdown of non-performing loans based on days outstanding are as follows:

2021 2020
Past due accounts
31 - 80 days past due B 815428 & 1,307 881
91 — 180 days past due 2,321,590 2,877 96T
Cwver 180 days past due 21,186,283 16,742 999
R 24,323,301 B 20,928,847

The breakdown of non-performing loans from borrowers as to secured and unsecured and as to type
of security are as follows:

2021 Yo 2020 %o

Loans secured by:
REM - R R 1,976,695 9.44%
Residential 2,540,626 10.45% ' !
REM — Agricultural 649,450 2.67% 649,450 3.10%
REM - Coammercial 4,394,073 18.07% - -
Chattel mortgage 1 0% - -
Secured -] 7,584,150 at.d19% B 2,626,145 12 55%
Urnsecurad 16,739,151 6B.81% 18,302,702 87.45%

B 24,323,301 100.00% P 20,928,847 100.00%
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Information regarding the Bank's non-performing loans are as follows:

2021 2020

Gross NPLs B 24323301 P 20,928.847
Ratio of gross NPLs to gross TLP (%) 26.35% 26.09%
Met NPLs 1,894,680 6,492 420
Ratio of net NPLs to gross TLP (%) 2 05% 8.00%
Ratio of total allowance for credit losses to gross

NPLs (%) 73.08% B3.56%
Ratio of specific allowance for credit losses on

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank complied with BSP Circular 341 requirements.
Disclosure as o industry! economic sector is as follows:

2021 % 2020 %

Wholesale and Retail Trade Repair of

Motor Activities of household as

employer and undifferentiated goods B 32,603,826 3533% R 23,797,880  30%
and semvices producing of household

for personal use

Construction 13,568,157 14.70% 12215167 15%
Agriculture, fishing and forestry 14815328 16.05% 10,070,956  13%
Real estate, renting and business

activities 13,781,065 14.93% 9,608,403 12%
Food service activities - - 5,910,776 7%
Consumption purpose 5,989,789 6.49% 5,218,958 6%
Transportation 4. T33,875 5.13% 2344 611 3%
Other community, social and personal - 0% - 0%
Communication 3,935,482 4.26% 1,450,069 2%
Other service activities 2,864,342 311% 8,509,161 12%

R 92,291,864 100.00% # 80,216,081 100%

The BSP considers the concentration of credit exists when the total loan exposure to a particular
industry on economic sector exceads 30% of the total loan portfolio.

The Bank has a concentration risk on Wholesale and Retail Trade Repair of Motor Activities of
housenold as employer and undifferentiated goods and services producing of household for
personal use and Consumption purpose sector as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
As part of the Bank’s risk management system, it addresses this risk exposure by having a more
intensive monitoring of loans under this seclor.
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13. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT - NET

The compasition of and movements in this account for 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Leaseheld  Furniture and  Transportation

Land Bullding __improvement ___ Fixtures Equipmant Total
_Cost
At January 1, 2020 RITH0 R 584406 R 159200 R I1BSTZ5 R 1719629 R 7386550
Adjustment . - 23,200 - 23,200
Addiions - - - - 300,000 300,000
At December 31, 2020 17 500 584406 1570280 3,184,925 2010620  7.700.750
Adiustment . - - 37,381 7,381
Addiliors - - - 133,417 85,000 158.417
At Dacember 31, 2021 317 584,406 1,679,200 3,322,342 2084629 7045548
Accumulated
~Sepraciation
At January 1, 2020 B - B 584406 R 1570280 B 3042150 B 171062 P 6025484
Depreciation (Mate 28) . . . 63,925 50,000 113,025
__Adiusiment - - - 45131 - iB4.513)
Al December 31, 2020 . 584406 1579280 3,021 571 1TEO6Z 6,554 B9
Depreciation (Nates 26) - - - 54,367 10,958 105,325
At Decombor 31, 2021 . 584,406 1,670,200 3,078,557 1,780,587  7,060.2H
Carrying amouni- 2020 337,500 - - 167,354 250,000 754 B54
_Carying amoun'- 2021 __ B 337500 B - B - R 243785 R 304042 R 88S53N

Based on Management's assumption which is based on the recoverable amount of the properties,
no impairment loss is required to be recognized both in 2021 and 2020. Total depreciation
amounted to R105,325 and R113,925 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 29,

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, no bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment have been
pledged as collateral or security for any of the Bank's liabilities.

Under BSP rules, investments in bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment should not

exceed 50% of the Bank’s unimpaired capital. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has
salisfactorily complied with this requirement.
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET - NET

The composition of and movements in this account for 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Building
Cost
At January 1, 2020 287 619
Additions 332,886
At December 31, 2020 620,505
Additions -
At December 31, 2021 620,505
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2020 119.735
Depreciation (Mote 29) 178,633
Adjustments 709
At December 31, 2020 298077
Depreciation (Mote 29) 222 BE3
At December 31, 2021 521,940
Carrying amount — 2020 321.428
_Carrying amount — 2021 98,565

15. INTANGIBLE ASSET - NET

The composition of and movements in this account for 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

Cost

January 1 B 606,000 R 548 501
Additions - 185,500
Adjustments - (128,001)
December 31 B 606,000 P 606.000
Accumulated amortization

January 1 B 109,997 PR 76,181
Amortization (Mote 29) 20,995 51.594
Adjustments (1) (17, 7T78)
December 31 B 130,991 B 109,997
Carrying amount B 475,009 R 496,003

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - NET

This account consists of the properties acquired through foreclosure or dacion as payment of

outstanding loans by delinquent borrowers:
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2021 2020
Cost/ carrying amount
January 1 P 661875 R 1,361,951
Additions 806,300 -
Disposals . {700,000}
Adjustment - (TE)
December 31 P 1,568,175 P& 661 875

The BSP, based on Sec. 362 of the MORB, requires that foreclosed assets be booked initially at
the carrying amount of the loan plus booked accrued interest less allowance for credit losses plus
transaction costs incurred upon acquisition,

The Bank recognized gain from disposal of investment properties amounting to nil and F850,000
in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is presented as gain on sale of investment properties under
‘Cther Income” in the statements of comprehensive income, ad disclosed in Note 27,

The Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to nil in 2021 and 2020

17. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets are composed of the following:

2021 2020
Stationery office supplies B 326860 PR 270,215
Prepaid expenses 45,070 44 450
Petty cash fund 5,000 5,000
Accounts receivable - ar.205
Miscellaneous assels 42,786 55,484
P 419,716 R 412,354

Prepaid expenses pertain to the Bank's advance payment of administrative expanseas related 1o
advertising, marketing, rent, insurance and other expenses.

18. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Deposit liabilibes consist of:

2021 2020
Savings deposits R 126,974,858 R 114,103,619
Time deposits 7,338 7,329

P 126,982,196 R 114,110,948

There are no deposits from directors, officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI) as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Savings deposits have an annual interest rates of ranging from .025% to 1.45% for all years
presented while time deposits have interast rate of .065% in 2021 and 2020,
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Interest expense on deposit liabilities in 2021 and 2020 amounted to R840,761 and B577.240,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 26.

Based on BSP Circular Mo. 1092 Series of 2020, the prescribed rate of the reqguired reserves
against deposit liabilities of rural banks s 2% for demand, savings and time depasits. These
reserves requirements of the BSP pertain to the Due from the BSF account. Due from BSP account
is non-interest bearing account that alse serves as clearing account in interbank claims.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Due from BSP amounting to P5,645 750 and PS5 726,328,
respectively, were set aside as reserves for deposit liabilities, as reponed to the BSP (Mote 10).

The Bank has complied with the above regulation for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020.

19. BILLS PAYABLE

This account consists of bormowings from Agricultural Credit Policy Council (ACPC) amounting o
R4 905,328 and B9,999 850 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The maturity analysis of bills payabile follows:

2021 Due in one Due in more

year than a year okl

Erimﬂ:uml Credit F'nI'E Council !.PLEF"C] B - 4.”5.335 4. 905,328
Due in one Due in mone
2020 year than a year -
Agricultural Credil Policy Council (ACPC) B - B 9950850 R 9959 850
The movements of the account are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, January 1 B 9,999 850 B 2,500,000
Additions - 89,999,850
Paymenis {5,094 522) (2,500,000)
Balance, December 31 P 4,905,328 B 9,999,850

The bills payable to ACPC represents the loan availed for the purpose of funding the loans fo be
extended to marginalized small farmers and fisherfolk. The loan bears no interest and will mature
in 10 years from grant date.

Mo assets were pledged as securities for these bills payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Interest expense on bills payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to nil and B31,389,
respectively, as discosed in Note 26.

20. RETIREMENT LIABILITY

The Bank does not have an existing retirement plan. Howewer, it is subject to the minimum

retirement benefit under the Republic Act (RA) No. 7641, “The Retirement Pay Law®, which provides
for retirement pay o qualiied employees in the absence of retirement plan.
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R.A. 7641 requires that private employees should provide minimum retirement benefits to
employees who have reached age 60 with at least five (5) years of service with the Bank.

Philippine Accounting Standards No. 18 requires the Bank to determine its retirement cost on the
basis of Projected Credit Unit Method (PUM) actuarial computation. This method reflects service
rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumplions concerming
amployeas’ projected salaries, among others.

;‘:;ﬂmunl consists of retirement liability amounting to 21,623 064 as of December 31, 2021 and
21. LEASE LIABILITY

The following table summarizes all changes to lease liability for the year ended December 31, 2021
and 2020:

2021 2020
Balance, January 1 -1 327999 R 172,041
Accretion of interest expense (Note 26) 15,163 16,251
Payments (240,000) (192,000)
Additions - 338 420
_Adjustments - (6,713)
Balance, December 31 P 103,162 P 327,990

22. ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE

This account is for accrued interest expense for depaosit liabilities amounting to B43,394 and
R17,531 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively.

23. OTHER LIABILITES

This account consists of:

2021 2020

Dividends payable B 413134 B -
Accounts payable 161,407 101,678
Withhaolding tax payable 77.020 56,604
Documentary stamp payable 2,625 2,625
Risk management fund - 164,251
Others 184,966 -

B gagasz R 325,162

Risk management fund periains non-interest-bearing fund collected by the Bank related to salary
loans set aside by the Management for the purpose of mitigating the risk of non-payment. The Bank
collected B3 for every B1,000 of loan granted and will be used to cover the unpaid portion of
defaulted salary loans.

Accounts payable perfains to overpayments of loans from various borrowers, salaries and wages,
loss on litigation and other expenses that are unpaid. These are non-interest-bearing.
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Withholding taxes perain to expanded withholding tax and withholding tax on compensation that
would be remitted to the bureau of internal revenwe. These are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled within 10 to 30 days.

24, EQUITY
Capital Stock

The details of the Bank's common stock and preferred stock are as follows:

2021 2020
Stocks Amount Stocks Amount
Authorzed:
Common stock at R100 par value 200,000 £ 20,000,000 200,000 R 20,000,000
Preferred stock at 2100 par value 50,000 5,000,000 50,000 5,000,000
Subscribed and paid-up:
Common stock 200,000 P 20,000,000 200,000 B 20,000,000
Preferred stock 28,324 2,832,400 28,324 2,832,400
Common stocks carmy one (1) vote per stock and a right to dividends.
Movements of common stock and preferred stock are shown below:
_Common stock
2021 2020
Stocks Amount Stocks Amount
January 1 00,000 R 20,000,000 200,000 B 20,000,000
|ssuance - - - -
December 31 200,000 P 20,000,000 200,000 B 20,000,000
Prefermed stock
2021 2020
Stocks Amount Stocks Amount
January 1 28,324 P 2,832,400 28,324 R 2.832.400
Issuance - - - -
Decamber 31 28324 B 2,832,400 28324 B 2,832 400
Dividends Declared

The Bank declared dividends in the amount of P456 648 and nil as of December 31, 2021 and

2020, respactively.
Capital Management

The primary abjective of the Bank's capital managemeant is to ensure that it complies with extemally
imposed capital requirements and to maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and to maximize shareholders' value.

The Bank manages its capital structure, which composed of paid-up capital and surplus reserve,

and makes adjustments to these ratios in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may

[114]




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
i{Iri Philipging Peso)

adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, returmn capital structure or issue capital
securities.

Under the current banking regulations. the qualifying capital accounts of the Bank should not be
less than an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of its risk-weighted assets. The qualifying capital
of the Bank for purposes of determining the capital-to-risk assets is total capital funds excluding:

{a) unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP;
{b) total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to DOSRI;

c) deferred tax asset;

(d) goodwill, if any;

(®) sinking fund for redemption of redeemable preferred stock; and

{f)  other regulatory deductions.

Risk assets consists of iotal assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered
by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans or acceplances under letiers of credit to the extent
covered by margin deposits, and other non-risk items as determined by the Monetary Board of the
BSP.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank is in compliance with the curment banking regulaticn.

The regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers which are Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital less
allowable deductions from the total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 of the Bank are defined as follows:

a. Tier 1 Capital includes the following:

i. paid up common stock,

ii. additional paid-up capital

iii, suUrplus,

iv, surplus reserves, and

v, undivided profits (for domestic banks only).

Subject to deductions for:
i. defarred income tax.

b. Tier 2 Capital includes:

i. perpetual cumulative preferred stock,

ii. appraisal increment reserve — bank premises
iii. general loan loss provision.

Under the existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory
requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank's unimpaired capital regulatory capital)
reported fo the BSP, determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from
PFRS in some respecis.
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Information regarding the Bank’'s "unimpaired capital” as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is shown

below.
2021 2020
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital | 43 644618 P 30,184 456
Tier 1 Capital 43,644,618 39,184 456
Tier 2 Capital 691,600 3,524 000
Gross qualifying capital 44 336,219 42 TOB. 456
Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 148,791,855 85,312 501
Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 22,890,922 23,958,171
Total risk-weighted assets B 171,682,877 P 109,270,672
Total capital ratio 25.82% 39.09%
Tier 1 ratio 25.42% 35.86%
Tier 2 ratio 0.40% 3.23%

As shawn in the above information, the Bank has complied with the BSP capital ratio requirements
as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Bank's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain stockholders, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future developmant of the business. The impact of the level of
capital on sharehalder's return is also recognized and the Bank recognizes the need to maintain a
balance between the higher returms that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position.

There have been no material changes in the Bank's management of capital during those years.

The BSP sets also another measure of Bank's liquidity by minimum liquidity ratic. Under the
existing BSP regulations, the Bank's minimum liquidity ratio is expressed as a percentage of

eligible stock of liquid assets to its total qualifying liabilities.

a.
i-
ii.
ihi.
.

The stock of liquid assets shall consists of:
cash on hand,

eligible debt securities,

deposits in other banks, and

interbank loans receivables with contractual maturity dates that fall within the next 30

calendar days.

The qualifying liabilities shall consists of the following:

Total liabilities, where the following obligations are subject to the conversion factors as

stated below:

Retail current and regular savings deposits with outstanding balance per account of
BS500,000 and below subject to 50% conversion factor in 2019,
deposits where the account holder has no contractual or legal discretion to withdraw said

deposit or pre-terminate the account within the next 30 calendar days,

borrowings that are non-callable in, or have contractual maturity dates beyond, the next

calendar days, and
obligations arising from operation expenses.
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« [Irevocable obligations under off-balance sheet items, such as:

i. guarantees issued,
i, trade related guarantess,
iii. letters of credit, and
iv. other committed credit lines.

Information regarding the Bank's “minimum liguidity ratio® and “leverage ratio® as of December 31,

2021 and 2020 is shown below.

2021 2020
Stock of liquid assets P 98,287,323 P 100,340 858
Ciualifying llabilities 100,141,975 BB B55.214
Minirmum liguidity ratio a8% 113%

2021 2020
Total capital P 43,738,258 R 42,457,302
Total assets 178,310,955 168,878,561
Leverage rafio 25% 25%

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank's minimum liquidity ratio and leverage ratio is in
compliance with the regulatory requirements.

25. INTEREST INCOME

This account consists of:

2021 2020
On loans and other receivables:
Agricultural and agranian loans B 841,702 & 905,492
Salary lcans 436,958 BA8 490
Crther loans 6,100,883 4. 898,328
Past due tems and litigation 3,181,892 1,803,686
10,661,435 8,495 996
Sales contract receivable 483,455 563,082
11,144,890 9,058,078
On bank deposits and financial asseis at
amartized cost:
Due from other banks (Mote 10) 165,583 245 475
Financial assels at amortized cost
(Mote 11) 12,153 65.648
177,736 312,123
P 11322626 B 9,371,201

Interest rates on loans ranges from &% to 30% per annum. The 30% is for the other loans since

they are subject to high risk. Penalty rate on past due loans is 5% per month.
Interest rates on sales contract receivable ranges from 6% to 78% per annum.
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Interest income on bank deposits was already subjected to final tax.

26. INTEREST EXPENSE AND FINANCE CHARGES

This account consists of;

2021 2020
Interast on deposit liabilities (Note 18) B 640,761 R 577.249
Interest on lease liability (Mote 21) 15,163 18,251
Interest on bills payable (Mote 19) = 31,389
R 655924 £ 624 BED
27. OTHER INCOME
This account conststs af-
2021 2020
Fees and commissions — Deposit B 333,547 B 108 403
Fees and commissions - Loans 164,345 117,064
Gain on sale of Real and other properties acquired
(Mote 16) - 850,000
Miscellaneous income 2,864,432 1,122,000
P 3352324 P 2,197 467

Miscellaneous income consists of amounts from fees for payments made for electricity bills, POS,
recovery of written-off accounts, loan processing fees, penalties for past-due accounts, and

reclassification from gains recognized for the collection of SCR account,
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28. OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2021 2020

Other benefits P 2,536,501 &~ 2274078
Salaries and wages 2,622,064 2844776
Directors and committee members fee 870,000 900,000
Taxes and licenses 755,954 538,777
Management and other professional fees 736,074 648,600
Litigation 670,610 144 124
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 458,759 77667
Insurance 441,099 398,394
555, Medicare, Pag-ibig, Philhaalth bank’s share 74,225 357,050
Depreciation and amortization {Mote 29) 349 183 344 152
Fuel and lubricant 292,700 301,829
Power, light and water 290,065 238,999
Advertising and publicity 267,746 56,710
Traveling 248,907 180,141
Repairs and maintenance 158,795 426,628
Postage, telephone and telegram 117,447 106,532
Stationeries and office supplies 116,675 110,701
Donations and charitable contribution 100,514 115,780
Information technology 102,307 45,575
Fines, penalties and other charges 67.576 12,047
Representation and entertainment 44 850 17,824
Training 19,600 14,000
Supervision and examination fee 16,262 14,121
Rent 11,700 45,800
Membership fees and dues 5,520 5,520
Miscallaneous 490,008 425476

P 12,063,169 P 10,656,301

Salaries and other benefits

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Other benefits 2,536,501 # 2844776
Salaries and wages 2,522,054 2 274078
333, Medicare, Fag-l_hlg Philhealth bank's share 371,225 367,080
5,429,780
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29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Depreciation of
Right-of-use assetl (Note 14) B 222863 PR 178,633
Bank premises, fumiture, fixtures and equipment
(Note 13) 105,325 113.925
Amortization of:
Intangible asset (Note 15) 20,995 51,504
R 349,183 PR 344 152

30. INCOME TAX

Under Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject to percentage and other taxes (included in taxes and
licenses in the statements of comprehensive income) as well as income faxes, Percentage and
other taxes paid consist principally of gross receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax. The
Bank's liability will be based on regulations to be issued by tax authorities.

Income taxes include the corporate income tax, discussed below, and final tax paid which
represents the final withholding tax on gross interest income from government securities and other
deposit substifutes. These income taxes, as well as the deferred tax benefits and provisions, are
presented as provision for income tax in the statements of comprehansive income.

Under cumrent tax regulations, the applicable income tax rate is thirly percent (25%). Interest
allowed as a deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to twenty percent (20%) of
interest income subjected to final tax. Also, entertainment, amusement and recreation (EAR)
expense is limited to one percent [ 1%:) of net revenues, as defined, for sellers of services beginning
September 1, 2002. The current regulations also provide for MCIT of 1% on modified gross income
and allow a three year MOLCO. Any excess of the MCIT over the regular income tax is deferred
and can be used as a tax credit against future income tax liability while MOLCO can be applied
against taxable income, both in the next three years from the year of occumence.

The Bank’s liability for income tax is based on existing tax laws and BIR regulations. However,
income tax expense as shown on the statements of position is determined under the provision of
PAS 12 Income Taxes. Under PAS 12, income tax expense is the sum of current tax axpensa
computed pnder tax laws and deferrad tax expense determined through the use of balance sheat
liability method. Deferred tax expanse s the sum of changes in deferred tax asset and defermred tax
liability. The balance sheet liability method focuses on temporary differences. Temporary
differences are differences batween the tax base of an asset or liability and its camrying amount in
the statements of financial position. The tax base of an asset or liability is the amount atiributed to
that asset or liability for tax purposes.
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Income Tax Recognized in Profit or Loss

Components of income tax expense are as follows:

2021 2020
Current tax expense:;

RCIT at 25% in 2021 and 30% in 2020 & 467,338 B 169,317
Adjustment due to changes in {ax rales (42,329) -
425,010 169,317

Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 484 (99,347)
Adjustment due to changes in {ax rales 28,924 -
30,418 (99.347)
B 455428 P 69,970

The CREATE Act, which seeks to reduce the Corporate Income Tax Rates and to rationalize the
current fiscal incentives by making it imebound, targeted and performance-based, was passed into
law on March 26, 2021. The following are the key changes to the Philippine tax law pursuant (o the
CREATE Act which have an impact to the Bank:

« [Effective July 1, 2020, regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate is reduced from 30% to 25%
for domestic and resident foreign corporations, For domestic corporations with net taxable
income not exceeding B5 million and with total assets not exceeding P100 million (exciuding
land on which the business entity's office, plant and equipment are siluated) during the
taxable year, the RCIT rate is reduced o 20%.

»  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% to 1% of gross income effective
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023,

Given that the CREATE Act was signed after December 31, 2020, the Bank used the prevailing tax
rate as of December 31, 2020 in determining its current and deferred taxes in its 2020 financial
statements and was taken up prospectively in the current period. As a result of the application of
the lower RCIT rate of 25% starting July 1, 2020, the curment income tax expense as presented in
the 2020 annual income tax return of the Bank was lower by P42 329 than the amount presented in
the 2020 financial statements which was charged to 2021 profit or loss.

The recognized deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2020 were also remeasured in 2021 using
the new tax rate of 25% under CREATE Law. This resulted in a decrease in the deferred tax asset
recognized in 2020 by P29,924 which was charged to 2021 profit or loss.

& numencal reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the tax rate in 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020

Accounting profit B 1,955,857 B 287,478
Tax expense at 25% or 30% 488,964 86,243
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible:

MNon-deductible expenses 23,303 T7.363
Tax effect of income that are not taxabla:

Interest income subjected to final tax (44, 434) (93,6386)
Adjusiment due ko changes in tax rates (12,405) -

B 455,428 69,970

[121]




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{Ir Philipgine Paso)

Details of Bank's MCIT which can be daimed as tax credils against regular income tax are as
folbows:

lied Applied 0

Year App " Expiry
Amount Previous Current Expired Unapplied

Incurred Year Year Date

2020 B B8482 B - B (B&482) B - B - 2023

2019 296,105 - (296, 105) - - 2022
R 394587 R - B (304,587) B - B -

Deferred tax assets

Details and movemeants of this account shown below.

Provision for
MCIT ":‘::"" ml ‘I' Tf:;‘ Total
obillgation

alance, January 1, 2020 B s R 4400 B - . B 120,525
‘ecognized in profil or loss a8 482 ; 2112 . 100,554
alance, December 31, 2020 394 567 24,490 2,112 . 421,169
‘weogrized in profit or loss (354 587) i 28779 (26.924) {395.732)
ialance, December 31. 2021 P - B 4490 &8 W8N B (29924 & 25,457 _

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. The Bank's related parties include key management personnel, close family members
of key management personnel, affiliates (i.e. enfities which are controlled. significantly influenced
by or for which significant volting power is held by the Bank or key management personnel or their
close family members and retirement plan for the benefit of the Bank's employees).

The Bank has several business relationships with related parties. Transactions with such parties
are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially same terms, incuding interest
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties. These
transactions also did not involve more than the nomal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable conditions.

As required by BSP, the Bank discloses loan transactions with its associates, affiliates and with
cartain DOSRI. Existing banking requlations limit the amount of individual loans o DOSRAI, T0% of
which must be secured, to the total of their respective deposits and book value of their respective
investments in the lending company within the Bank. In the aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally
should not exceed total equity or 15% of fotal loan portfolio of the Bank or 100% of net worth,
whichever is lower.
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Below are further details of Bank's DOSEI loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Related Party Loans
Prarficulers DO | nemn {inclusive of DOSRI loans)
3021 5030 z0z1 2020
Outstanding loans B 3,395,900 1,925,671 3,395,900 | 1,025,571
Percent of DOSR|/Reilated Party 0ans
o intai loan portiolio 3.67% 29 3.67% 2%

Percent of unsecured DOSEY Related
Party loans 1o total DOSRIRelsied

Party loans 0.10% 1% A 1%
Percent of past due DOSRI Related
Party loans o total DOSRIRelated 000 29% 000 999
Pencent of nion-perfomming
DOSRIRelated Party loans fo bodal
DOSRIRelated Party loans 0.00% 0% 0.00% 0%

The amounts of loans disclosed for related parties above differ with the amounis disclosed for key
management personnel since the composition of DOSREI is more expansive than that of key

management personnel.

Sec. 342 of the MORE provides that the total outstanding loans, other credit accommodation and
guarantees to each of the bank’s subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of
the net warth of the lending bank, provided that the unsecured partion of which shall not exceed
5% of such net waorth, Further, the total outstanding loans, credit accommodations and guarantees
to all subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the net worth of the lending
bank; and that these subsidiares and affiliates of the lending bank are not related interest of any of
the director, officer andior stockholder of the lending bank. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Bank is in compliance with thesa requirements.

Any violation of the provisions under BSP Circular Mo. 914 is subject to regulatory sanctions.
However, loans, other credit accommodations and guaraniees, as well as availments of previously
approved loans and committed credit lines that are not considered DOSRI (non DOSREI) acoounis
prior to the issuance of BSP Circular No. 914 are not covered by such sanctions for a transition
pericd of two years from the effectivity of the Circular or untii said loan, other credit
accommedations and guarantees become past due, or are extended, renewed or restructured,
whichever comes later.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers officers,
with the rank of assistant vice president and up to constitute key management personnel for
purposes of PAS 24, Related Farly Disclasures.

The compensation of the key management personnel and director's remuneration shown below:

Key management personnel compensation,
salaries and short term benefits R
_Directors' and committee member's fee

o

[123]




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{Iri Philippine Paso)

32. BASIC QUANTITATIVE INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The key financial performance indicators of the Bank are shown below in (%)

2021 2020
Return on average equity 3.48% 0.54%
Return on average assels 0.86% 0.15%
Met interest margin 6.65% B.56%
Capital adeguacy ratio 2582% 39.09%

As of Decembear 31, 2021, and 2020, there were no outsianding dilutive potential common shares.

33. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Mo amount of provision is recognized and no circumstance that gives rise to disclosure of
contingent liabilities and conlingent assets has been identified as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

Mo contingencies and commitments arising from off-balance sheet items in years 2021 and 2020.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Bank identifies avents after the reporting date as events that occurred after the reparting date
but before the date the financial statements were authorized for issue. Any event that provides
additional information about the Bank's financial position at the reporting date is reflected in the
financial statements. Mon-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when material.

Continuing COVID-19 pandsamic

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. The
extent of COVID-19's effect on the Bank's operational and financial performance will depend on
future developments, including the duration, spread and intensity of the pandemic, all of which are
uncertain and difficult to predict considering the rapidly evolving landscape. As a result, it is not
currently possible to ascertain the overall impact of COVID-19 on the Bank's business, However, if
the pandemic continues to evolve into a severe worldwide health crisis, the disease could have a
material adverse effect on the Bank's business, results of operations, financial condition, and cash
flows.

It is not possible to estimate the overall impact of the pandemic's short-term and long-term effects
as the scale and duration remain uncertain; however, the Bank expects that this pandemic could
have a material impact on the financial position, financial performance, and related cash flows
starting in 2021 and years after. The Bank will continue to manitor the situation and assess further
impact.

i5. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

This account pertains to the adjustments made in the retained eamings amounting to R237,175 and
R1,300,579 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 was approved and authaorized
for issuance by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 18, 2022.

The BOD is still empowered to make amendments on the financial statements even after the date
of issue.

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021 and 2020
il Phiippine Peso)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION UNDER REVENUE REGULATIONS 15— 2010

Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 21 — 2002 prescribing additional procedural and/or documentany
requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements
accompanying income tax retums was amended under RR 15 — 2010. The amendment that
became effective on December 28, 2010 requires the inclusion in the notes to financial statements,
infarmation on taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the year in addition to what is required
under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and such other standards andior conventions.

Below are the additional information required by RR 15 — 2010. This information is presented for
purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a reguired part of the basic financial statements.

Gross Receipts Tax

In liew of the value-added tax, the Bank is subject to the gross receipts tax (GRT) imposed on all
banks and non-bank financial imtermediaries pursuant to Section 121.2 of the Philippine tax code.

Gross receipts taxes paid or accrued for the year ended December 31, 2021 consists of:

2021
Gross receipts tax paid B 577,573
Gross receipts tax payable -
£ 577,573

Documentary Stamp Tax

The Bank paid documentary stamp tax for the year 2021 amounting to P91 845 arising from time
deposits, bills payable and lease agreements in pursuant to new DST rates under R.A. 10963 or
the TRAIM Law of 2017.

Al Other Mational and Local Taxes

All other local and national taxes paid by the Bank and presented as part of operating expenses for
the year ended Dacember 31, 2021 consist of:

2021

Mational tas: p
Percentage tax R 592 839 y
Local taxes:
Business permit 146,822
Feal estate property lax 15,933
Annual registration 400

755,994
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Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid or accrued for the years ended December 31, 2021 consist of:

Faid Accrued Total
2021
Withholding tax on compensation B 1,939,575 B 77020 B 2,016,595
Expanded and final withholding fax 136,359 . 136,359
P 2075934 B 77,020 2,152,954
Tax Cases

The Bank has no outstanding lax cases in any other court or bodies outside of the BIR as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Disclosure Requirements for Taxpayers with Related Party Transactions under RR 34 - 2020
Revenue Regulations (RR) Mo. 34-2020 prescribes the Guidelines and Procedures for the
Submission of BIR Form No. 1708, Transfer Pricing Documentation (TPD) and other Supporting
Documents, Amending for this Purpose the Pertinent Provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR) Nos.
19-2020 and 21-2002, as amended by RR No. 15-2010.

The Company is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions
provided under this RR.
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_-‘-lq—-umﬁ-m__n_nm—“uunun_uumn_n-mu T e provacrs of
Farvarim _BENC LEOUINAONT MM BN SOCEM
22 Mumbser of
vt 2amm of TroaaumCAassani Teaa e, Attachments
| [l ™ I3l

[Part Wl - Dotails of P,
Humber

Particulars
23 CashiBank Debit Memo |
24 Check |
[26 Tax e Mema

[26 Others | Specty Belon)

Il 1 |
fiachine valkatonFevenue GMcia Receipls Detals (F nof fied with an Actharized Agant Bank]
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!
.|EI ?ﬁm_ﬁfr Annual Income Tax Return
Janumey 20TBENCS) | B e meewme Tax R e C o ,
P 1POZRT 01ABENCS P2
Taxpayer Identification Mumber (TIN) Registered Name
004 R Jam0 F ooa FRLIRUAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. |
Part IV - Compulaticn of Tax Do NOT emisr Centavos)
2T Sales Py ] Fees 11,144, BS0)
[28 Less: Sales Returns, Alcwances and Discounts [
28 Met Sales/Recepis/Revense sl ses (fem 27 Lass lam 28] 11,144,850
30 Less: Costof Sales/Services 506,327
34 Gross incame from Opsration (Hem 29 Less ifem 30) 10,548,853
32 Adcl: Ciher Takable Income Mot Subjected to Final Tax 3,382,224
13 Total Tanabie income (Sum of fems 31 and 23] 123,500, 287
|L=ss: Deductions Allowabils under Exissng Law
r?:ﬂmjl:;lummd Deductians (Fram Part vI | 12,001,832
mgumhmdm:fﬁmmw 3|
If ftem 5)
NOLCO fonly for thoss faxable onder Sac. 2 fo Cf;
%:ﬂmaamm of the tax Code) [From Part VI o|
111 ftem 8)
[37 Tatal Deductions (Sum of lems 34 o 36) 12,031,832
| OR fin case faxable under Sec 270) & 1
|28 Opticnal Standand Desduction (46% of kem 33) | o]
[23 Mot Taxabis incomei{Loss) If femized: item 33 Less item 37, if OS0; am 33 Less tem 38 | 1,86388 | |
40 Appiicabia Income Tax Riate | 25 |
(41 Income Tax Due ather than Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) (ftem 38 x tem 40) 467,330 |
42 MCIT Due (2% of #=m 33) 1238008
43 Tax Dwe (Normal income Tax Due in Bem 41 O the MCIT Due in Mem 42, whichever is bigher! 467 338
{To Part 1] Iem 14) !
| ess: Tax Cred ts (attach
44 Price ¥ear's Excess Credits Other Than MEIT |
45 Income Tax Payment under MCIT from Presious Cuarter/s 1}|I
46 Income Tax Payment under Risgular®ormal Rate from Previous Cuartan's ﬂl
47 Excess MCIT Applisd this Current Taxable Year (From Pat VT Schecule IV Tem 4§ 368,314
48 Crecitaisle Tax Wishheld from Previous Guarier's per BIR Fom Mo. 2307 [
|45 Creditable Tax Withhekd per BIR Form Na. 2307 for the 4% Quarier [
50 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable [
HTuPIdnHrhmPr:ﬁmuh'Fihd.Hﬂi:nmmnduthhrn [']
Special Tax Gredis (Ta Part V ftem 5} []
oo CodbePayrts ety
o}
ol
e
|15 Tatal Tax CreditsiPaymenss (Sum of ltems 44 to 54) (Ta Part Il Item 15) 180938
|56 Not Tax Payable | {Overpayment) jiem &3 Less ftem 8% ) (To Part 11 Item 16) T8 401
| Part V - Tax Reldief Availment
|57 Special Afowabie itemized Deductions (#=m 38 of Part v xAppiicabis incoms Tax Aae) | 0 -
|8 Adet Special Tax Credits (From Part IV Jtem 52) o y
|58 Total Tax Reliof Availment {Som of kems 57 and 84)
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BIF: Foem Mo.
11[};:31' Annual Income Tax Return
Jarusary 0 1B[ENES) Conporation, Partnership and Other Non-ndividual Taxpayer Subject Only to
Page 2 REGULAR income Tax Rate

Lo

1702RT O1BENCS P

Tazpayer ldentiflcation Number (TIN) Registered Mame

[y RET] REET F oo [ [RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. |
Schedule | - Ordinary Allowable Iltemized Deductions (Attach sddifional sheet's, f necessary)
1 Amortizations a
2 Bad Debis [
3 Chantable Confributions [ a
4 Diepletion [ a
|8 Deprecason 126,51
|& Ensertainment, Amusement and Becreation 44,880
T Frings Benefits a|
|8 Interest al
|8 Lirszes ]
fi0 Pensicn Trus: a
|1t Revai 251,700
|12 Research and Development [
I'l-'iEIIITH.WIgH Y — _m-
|14 555, G515, Phibealth, MOMF and Other Contribuions a71,585|
|18 Taxes. and Licanses 758,504
[1& Tramspartation and Trave 48,507
17 Ceners (Dreductions Subject o Withholding Tax and Ceher Expenses) [Spectfy beiow; Add additional
shealis), f necessany]
la Janitorial and Messengenal Services a
|b Professional Fees a
Secury Servicss 458,769
EMEI‘EFITE I_M-
|s|DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS FEE 70,000
 MANASEMENT AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEE TG, 074
LITKSATION BT0,E10
INSURANCE 441,089
I OTHERS [ 1,537,438
&
B Total Grdinary Allowable itemized Deductions [Som of #ams 1 fo 171 {To Part IV ftem 34) 12,031,532
| Schedule Il - Special Allowable itemized Deductions (Attach sdaitional sheet’s, £ neceszary) |
Diezcription Legal Bazis Amount
1 q
2 [
3 q
o i
&

Il-'l'n'li Special Allowable Hemized Deductions (Sum of fems 1o 4) (To Part [V [tem 35)
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BIR Form Mo,
1702-RT Annual Income Tax Return l" “wm Il
Corporation, Partnershi d Other Mon-individual T: Subject Onl o
Januiay J0BENCE) "REGULAR Income Tax Rate v 1702-RT D1ABENCS P4

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Name

004 - 20 REE - K |

RURAL BAK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

Schedule Il - Computation of Net Operating Loss Garry Gver [NOLGO)

1 Gross Income [From Part [V ftem 23) al
2 Less: Ordinary Allowable Remized Deducions (From Pat ¥ Scheduwe | ifem 18) Q
3 Met Operating Loss{iftem T Less Mem 2) (To Scheduwe I114, ffem 74)

Eadlle il.h-l:nrrpumﬂun of Awvailable Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (00 NOT enter Cantavos: 45 Cenfavos or Less dog

;50 o rone rownd
—— A B NOLCO Appled Previous Year

[ ) o
s o] o
e 0 0
[ ~T 0

ContinuaSion of Schedule (1A (Iem numiers coninue from @bl abowe)

) NOLCO Expired ) NOLCO Apglied Current Year

i [
|¢ o a [
le o a [
|7 ol a [

Tu?ﬁr:ﬂ.cnrmm-m:dnmmrmmm ﬂ:
[Echedule W - Computation of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) |
| Year ) Nomal Income Tax s adjusted I B} MCIT Icuc_mmrr?:wn-m
12018 a 96,106 96,106
22020 57,779, 126,988 | [EL)
3 a o a
ContinuaSon of Schedule I (fem numbers confioge from fadle abose)
A _ G) Baance of Excess MCIT |
el P R L
[G:ELmr:EH-E +F}]
1 [ 206,108,
F [ 59,209
1 [ o
Total Excess MCIT Applied Sun of sans 1760 371 (T Park 00 ttem 47) 335.3“]

Schedule V - Reconciliation of Met Income per Books Against Taxable Income (sHtach addional sheel's, if necessary)

1 Met Incomei{Loss| par bocks | 1,065 A5H |
fudd: Hon-deducible Expenses/Taxable Other Income
2| HON-DEDUCTIBLE DONATIONS AKD GIFTS | 45,514
1 | OTHERS | 45,718
Total {Surm of lems 1 /0 3 | 2,047 091 |
Less: A) Mon-Taxable Income and Income Subjected 1o Final Tax
5 MON-TAXABLE INTEREST INCOME 177,736
| [
B} Special Deductions
T
Tatal (Sum of Hiems 5 b &) 177,738]

[[i8 Mot Taxable IncameiiLoss) {item 4 Less liem 4)

1,860 355
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